Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited
BSERBRAE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability )

(RBASEHETMAZHNERAT)
Stock Code B 1X5%: 1305




ur goal is to provide LED backlight and lighting

devices and one-stop energy management
services for enterprises and government organisations
to optimize their operational effectiveness and cost
efficiency
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DRI

Being established in Hong Kong for over 30 years, Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited ("Wai Chi Holdings" or “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) is one of the China’s high-quality
manufacturer for Light-Emitting Diode (“LED") backlight and LED lighting
products. The Group is recently developing its business in lighting energy
management solutions actively and is becoming an integrated one —
stop LED energy management services provider specializing in offering
comprehensive lighting energy management solutions for sizeable
business corporations and public utilities.

Wai Chi Holdings was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November
2014 (stock code: 1305), which marked an important milestone for the
Group and laid a solid foundation for future development. Capital strength
was also being enhanced providing the Group with better capabilities
to meet any future challenges. As of 2013, Wai Chi Holdings ranked No.
2 in China’s small size LED backlight products market and ranked No. 7
amongst China’s LED backlight manufacturers.

The Group possesses industry leading LED research and development
("R&D") technologies and has excellent achievements in R&D for LED
backlight products. The Group has successfully developed over a thousand
of new LED backlight products and over a hundred of new LED lighting
products in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and Japan, among which 29 patents
were registered in the PRC, 1 patent and 52 trademarks were registered
in Hong Kong. The Group has comprehensive production facilities in
Shenzhen and Huizhou in the Guangdong province and Yichang in the
Hubei province.

The Group's customers can be categorized into 2 main groups under LED
backlight products and LED lighting business. LED backlight products are
classified into 4 types including: 1) smartphones; 2) automobile on-board
displays; 3) television displays; and 4) other industrial equipment displays.
LED lighting business are divided into 2 types, including commercial
lighting and public lighting.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIONS

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung
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Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISERS
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STOCK CODE
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COMPANY'S WEBSITE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERE|E

We actively fine-tune our product
mix to meet ever-changing
market demands

RAMEECERAS  HEY
TEI B LB ER

Chairman Mr. Yiu Chi To
FE hEELEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited, its subsidiaries and the
board of directors of the Company (‘Directors” or the “Board”), | am
pleased to present our shareholders our audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The state of China’s economy continued to be the overriding concerns
of the Asian and Global markets. Given the seriousness of the property
downturn and financial market meltdown during the second half of 2015,
the Chinese economy was hammered resulting in a lower-than-expected
GDP growth rate for 2015. The economic slowdown and RMB devaluation
has inflicted considerable pain on domestic consumption and acted as a
major restraint on growth of basically all business activities.
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Looking back at the China LED industry, which has undergone rapid EEFPEMEDEE  BRENEFTFALET
development for the past few years; intensive competition has resulted in PRRAER - BB FER T MEREOLE
an unhealthy operating environment. Industry imbalance, price war and IRIE - EEELE - BB NMEEERNERER
oversupply continued to adversely affect market players, together with the BEHMIS2EEERTNZE - I EEHAD TN
technological advancement across Asia, LED market is getting tougher and @ TR - LEDM ISR\ BRE - 5F
many manufacturers were forced to exit. Despite the strong operational SLRUERFERETS - BEAEBHEARL
and management base as well as the leading position established in the AR T IR A MBI TTE AL - (BRI
industry, Wai Chi Holdings has sustained a big hit during the year under REBEERNDIRET TEARITE -

review.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®HE

During the year, the Group remained focused and dedicated in conducting
our business; however, due to the sudden economic downturn
during mid-2015 which affected China and across the globe, our total
revenue decreased by 5.6% as compared to 2014 to approximately
HK$1,100,491,000. Revenue from sales of LED backlight products was
approximately HK$1,033,652,000, decreased by 3.5% as compared to
2014; revenue from sales of LED lighting products was approximately
HK$66,839,000, decreased by 29.4% as compared to 2014.

PROSPECTS

Facing an economic downturn and an uncertain external recovery, China is
expected to accelerate pro-growth service sector reforms and to widen the
social safety net to promote consumption and investment in services areas.
More supportive policies in terms of encouraging domestic manufacturing
and energy saving are also expected which should help to mitigate the
economic slowdown and to bring some new hopes to the industry.

With all the opportunities that may arise within or outside China, we believe
Wai Chi Holdings will continue to excel within the industry. We are working
on fine-tuning our resources allocation among various business segments
to gain extra flexibility in face of the challenging market. Given what we
have achieved over the past 30 years, we are further strengthening our LED
industry advantages through internal process optimization and upgrades.
We will also continue investing in technological research and development
to keep up with the changing market needs. Challenges help open new
doors for Wai Chi Holdings and we strongly believe opportunities will go to
those who are prepared. We are confident about our future and we hope
you, as our shareholders, will stay with us under the storm.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
and appreciation to all the investors, business partners and customers of
the Group for their trust and continued support. Meanwhile, | would also
take this chance to thank the Board members for their highly effective work
and our staffs for their continuous efforts.

Mr. YIU Chi To
Executive Director and Chairman

24 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE 2wl N 7

INDUSTRY REVIEW

China recorded a pronounced deceleration in growth in 2015, affirming
that a multiyear slowdown is biting the world’s second-largest economy
harder and is showing little sign of abating. The annual GDP growth rate
announced was 6.9%, lowest since 1990. Despite the respectable headline
growth figure, pain is deepening across the country in the sectors that
have traditionally driven Chinese economic growth and is translating
directly into slower economic activities as well as even dimmer prospects.
As the Chinese economy continues to shift away from its manufacturing
roots, the growth for manufacturing sector slowed to 6.0% in 2015 from
7.3% in 2014. Related activities continued to contract at fast pace during
the start of the new year and recorded the worst readings in almost three-
and-a-half years by January 2016. It is expected that the PRC government
may initiate large scale capacity reduction in various sectors, which could
add extra downward pressure on domestic manufacturers in the short to
medium run.

LED backlight industry was no exception under the sudden market
meltdown. The overall LED backlight market in China was seen increasingly
mature and started saturating during the first half of 2015, leading to
sluggish growth for the full year. Smartphone LED backlight sector lost
its growth momentum under the intensified market competition across
the country, whereas automobile and TV LED backlight sectors managed
to maintain a healthy development pace. Market recovery is expected
to remain lackluster with higher degree of consolidation, business

environment will be a lot trickier and tougher.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEZWmAER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

2015 was definitely a year of turbulence for China’s economy. The Group
experienced a slide in overall business despite its prudent management
as well as technological advancements and breakthroughs made. The
total revenue was approximately HK$1,100,491,000, decreased by 5.6%
as compared to 2014. Revenue from the sales of LED backlight products
was approximately HK$1,033,652,000 and revenue from the sales of LED
lighting products was approximately HK$66,839,000, decreased by 3.5%
and by 29.4% respectively as compared to 2014. The significant drop in the
sales of LED lighting products was mainly attributable to the slowdown of
tenders on commercial and government lighting projects in China as well as
overseas markets.

The Group is putting effort in product mix restructuring to reduce the
proportion of goods with low profit margin. To further optimise business
performance, the Group has continued adopting stringent cost control
measures. The Group has been using enterprise resource planning
(“ERP") system for timely monitoring of its operation process, to promote
information exchange between functions and to store and manage
operational data. During the year under review, the Group successfully
completed a system upgrade of its production lines to achieve higher
process automation. Resources therefore were reallocated and better
utilised which improved the overall financial and work efficiency.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IERERLAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE ZWmAER T

LED Backlight Business
The Group's LED backlight products are classified into 4 types, including: 1)

smartphones; 2) automobile on-board displays; 3) television displays; and
4) other industrial equipment displays. During the period under review,
revenue derived from LED backlight products related to smartphones,
automobile on-board displays, television displays and equipment displays
were approximately HK$598,903,000, HK$ 145,480,000, HK$ 105,352,000, and
HKS$183,917,000, respectively.

After the exponential growth in China’s low-to-mid end smartphone
market during 2011 to 2014, the growth significantly slowed down due
to oversupply and price wars. Competition was most severe for low-
end smartphones bringing devastating impacts to the overall industry.
According to the International Data Corporation, the worldwide
smartphone growth is slowing down to 10.1% in 2015, marked a total
of 1,432.9 million units, down from 27.5% growth in 2014. According to
Strategy Analytics, smartphone shipments in China grew just 3.0% annually
from 423.6 million units in 2014 to 437.8 million in 2015. As the Chinese
smartphone market continues to mature, price will be hammered to a very
competitive level. Together with the switching trend of new technologies,
such as the adoption to Organic Light-Emitting Diode (OLED) displays for
some international smartphone players, the demand for LED backlight
was dragged leading to the massive revised down of the growth pace of
smartphone backlight market in 2015. However, thanks to the satisfactory
demand for the Group’s automobile on-board displays and television
displays backlight products, the revenue of the Group’s LED backlight
products remained stable during 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEZWmAER DM

For the year under review, automobile on-board LED backlight was the
Group's key development driver. Due to the drop in LED price over the
past year, together with the technology advancement, the demand for
automobile on-board displays being used in middle-to-high end vehicles
in China and international markets spurred. The Group believes that this
transformational trend in automobile on-board displays will continue in
the coming years.

Furthermore, as the Chinese economy has experienced the lowest GDP
growth in 2015 since 1990, consumption slowdown has dragged the
demands on TV LED market in China. Nevertheless, the Group is confident
that the growth for TV backlight products will remain steady in the future.

The Group always believes customer loyalty is one of its most valuable
intangibles and the Group is proud to have been supported by groups
of long-term clients. To attain higher level of business security under the
deteriorating domestic consumption market, the Group has started fine-
tuning its product mix by only focusing on high-margin backlight products
to keep up the profit margins. The Group is also working on exploring new
markets and securing new customers for opening new income source. The
team is working to achieve business sustainability by means of product

restructuring and customer diversification.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE zml &2

LED Lighting Service Business

The Group's LED lighting business is classified into 2 types, including public
lighting and commercial lighting. The Group provides various services
including products, lighting solutions design, installation and maintenance
etc. During the year under review, revenue from public lighting and
commercial lighting was approximately HK$39,921,000 and HK$26,918,000
respectively.

LED BACKLIGHT REVENUE BREAKDOWN
LEDE YU A BA 48

Televisions

L)
Equipment Displays

WEERE \

Automobile Displays
ERETE

Smartphone

BREFR

Commercial Lighting
[EES:EE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEZWmAER DM

After the PRC government announced a series of LED street lighting
stimulation policies in the past years, the penetration rate of LED street
lights was seen soaring. And yet during the year under review, upon the
weak consumption sentiment due to economic breakdown, many of the
LED upgrade projects were delayed and postponed which completely
changed the demographics of the domestic LED lighting market. Before
the collapse, the Group has successfully completed over 200 LED lighting
projects with major supermarkets in China. The Group strives to win more
domestic LED lighting upgrade projects in various supermarket chain
stores when the market momentum resumes.

Whereas for U.S. and Europe, the market was a bit more promising during
the year under review. The Group managed to report satisfactory sales
numbers from these two regions and both U.S. and Europe will remain the
Group's short-term sales focus.

QUALITY CONTROL

The Group has established stringent quality control procedures to ensure
the quality of the LED products. The Group’s quality control procedures
start during product design stage and will continue throughout the
entire product manufacturing and storage process. Quality control staffs
participate in the product design process. There is a set of established
procedures in selecting and approving new suppliers and raw materials,
and thorough testing of product samples are carried out before mass
production of the LED products.

The Group has purchased a series of advanced production and testing
equipment for improving quality control. The Group has been awarded
various certifications, including ISO 9001: 2008 and 1SO 14001: 2004 for
quality and environmental management systems, which serve as important

assurance of the product quality and reliability.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes that product innovation and the research and
development ("R&D") capabilities to develop new products are critical
in maintaining its competitiveness in the LED backlight and LED lighting
industries which are characterised by rapid technological advancements.
The Group places great emphasis on developing and improving the LED
backlight and LED lighting products in order to remain competitive in the
LED industry over the years.

The Group’s R&D centre is located in our production plant in Huizhou.
The Group engages in various R&D activities, including (i) concurrent
development of new product designs with customers; (i) improvement
of product quality, efficiency and functions of existing products; (iii) in-
project calibration and optimization of the production processes and
capability of the equipment; (iv) introduction and promotion of the use
of new production technologies and new production materials; and (v)
assessment of the future prospect and development trend of the LED
industry. The Group has achieved a number of technological advancement
and breakthroughs by obtaining 29 patents registered in the PRC and 1
patent registered in Hong Kong. Going forward, the Group will continue to
enhance its R&D capabilities in order to catch up with the strong demands
in both LED backlight and LED lighting products markets.

During the second half of 2015, the Group has showcased 3 key
commercial lighting products during the Hong Kong International Lighting
Fair (Autumn Edition), among which, the Group has developed a new
sensor light function for its high bay light series, which can further reduce
energy and emission and lower operating costs. The Group will continue
to devote reasonable amount of resources in R&D to keep up with the
changing market.

AWARDS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

During the year under review, a subsidiary of the Group has been awarded
the Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme (“GOALS”) Green Office
Label and United Nations Millennium Development Goals “Better World
Company” Label by the World Green Organisation ("“WGO") and Junior
Chamber International Hong Kong, in recognition of the Group's continued
efforts in corporate sustainability and environmental protection.
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WGO has launched GOALS since 2013 with the aim to raise awareness of
global environmental issues and to encourage corporations to implement
best green practices in their offices in 9 stipulated aspects of operations,
including energy savings, water savings, waste reduction, paper and
printing reduction, green procurement, IT use and disposal, transportation,
education and awareness and green innovation. Having passed the
stringent green audit, the Group has demonstrated its commitment in
corporate social responsibility by incorporating its green mission into daily
practice and corporate culture.

PROSPECTS

2015 was definitely a tough year for business owners. China economy was
in shortage of a positive dynamic, exemplified by the combination of slow
investment growth, lack of consumer confidence, weak productivity, and
a range of lingering policy and business challenges. This puts the global
economy in a holding pattern at least for the immediate future, among
which China’s slowing economic growth continued to be the red flag.

Given the challenging business environment, the Group is integrating
more sustainability principles in its operations including business
streamlining, product mix restructuring, operation process upgrading and
process automation to attain higher efficiency and better cost benefits.

With over 30 years of experience, industry expertise and wide market
recognition received, Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited is in a better
position to deal with all the challenges ahead. The Group is always working
to develop itself into an integrated industry leader in terms of design,
manufacturing and selling of LED backlight and LED lighting products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue was derived from selling LED backlight and LED
lighting products. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the sales of the
Group’s LED backlight products was approximately HK$1,033,652,000,
decreased by 3.5% from approximately HK$1,070,946,000 in 2014; the
decrease was mainly attributable to the slowdown in growth in mid-to-
high end smartphones and television markets. The sales of the Group's
LED lighting products was approximately HK$66,839,000, with a decrease
of 29.4% from approximately HK$94,633,000 in 2014. The decline was
attributable to the decreased spending from commercial customers on
related LED lighting projects.
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The Group has devoted much effort in restructuring its product mix
by increasing the sales contribution from high margin goods, such as
automobiles and television LED backlight products. Furthermore, the
Group has further strengthened its R&D capabilities by obtaining 3 new
patents in 2015 to catch up with the fast changing LED backlight and LED
lighting products markets.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's gross profit was
approximately HK$245,512,000, decreased by 11% from approximately
HK$275,843,000 in 2014. Gross profit margin was 22.3%, slightly decreased
by 1.4 percentage point from 23.7% in 2014 due to increasing labour cost.
The Group is actively eliminating outdated production procedures and
upgrading production facilities for more automation as well as to launch
new and upgraded products to maintain gross profit margin.

Revenue (FY2015)
EEIE(2015FEF)

LED Lighting
LEDER]

HKS$
BT

f LK e
BERER

Total Revenue

1,100,491,000
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Labour costs, sales commissions and transportation costs were the Group’s
major selling and distribution expenses. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group's selling and distribution expenses was approximately
HK$25,926,000, increased by 13.1% compared to the same period of 2014,
which was attributable to the increase in labour cost.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses refer to the general expenses incurred in offices
and factories. The Group focuses on effective management, by means of
resources consolidation in the Shenzhen and Huizhou factories, as well as
moving the molds production departments from Shenzhen to Huizhou to
reduce rental expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's
administrative expenses was approximately HK$107,129,000, increased
by 7.7% compared to the same period of 2014. The increase was mainly
attributable to increase in labour cost.

Other Operating Expense

Other operating expense of approximately HK$77,313,000 comprise: (i)
impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately HK$21,319,000;
(i) impairment loss of inventories of approximately HK$41,830,000;
and (i) impairment loss on construction in progress of approximately
HK$14,164,000.

Impairment for trade receivables with aging over 1 year has been made
with total amounting to approximately HK$21,319,000. After the sudden
economic downturn since mid-2015, the management understands that
some of our business partners especially those small to medium size
entities are facing huge financial and operating challenges. Hence, the
Group has reassessed the recoverability of those trade receivables and
made a comparatively prudent allowance policy for those remaining
balances.

Impairment for inventories with aging over 1.5 years has been made with
total amounting to approximately HK$41,830,000. Due to the change
in economic environment and rapid technological advancements, the
product life cycle for LED products become shorter and shorter. The group
therefore changes this impairment policy on inventory from provision
made for all inventory over 2 years to 1.5 year. A further impairment of
approximately HK$41,830,000 has been made during the year of review.
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Impairment for construction in progress was made for the facilities of our
production plant located in Yichang. The production plant in Yichang is for
the production of LED lighting products for Government project in different
cities and districts in the Hubei province. There is a development plan for
the construction of factories which was expected to be completed by
December 2015. However due to the economic downturn and the change
in local government financial position, many LED lighting upgrade projects
were delayed and postponed. Thus we postponed the development plan
for the Yichang facilities and may reconsider the development plan over
such area according to the economic environment of PRC in the future.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense comprised current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company
Limited, are qualified as a “High-Tech Enterprise” in the PRC and are
granted certain tax benefit, including a preferential enterprise income tax
rate of 15% instead of the statutory rate of 25%. During the year under
review, the Group's income tax expense was approximately HK$ 1,106,000,
decreased by 94.6% as compared to the same period of 2014 due to
decrease in taxable profits.

Inventories

As of 31 December 2015, the Group's inventory was approximately
HK$222,385,000, increased by 10.6% as compared to 31 December 2014,
The increase in inventory was attributable to the increase of inventory
for automotive and television LED products to meet with the increasing
demand.

Trade Receivables

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s net trade receivables was
approximately HK$347,231,000, decreased by 34.8% as compared to 31
December 2014. The Group'’s major customers are sizeable corporations
with long term relationships, including a number of listed companies,
hence the risk of trade receivables turning into bad debts is relatively low.

Trade Payables

As of 31 December 2015, the Group's trade payables was approximately
HK$183,936,000, decreased by 17.4% as compared to 31 December 2014,
the decrease was attributable to decrease in purchase of materials and
longer credit period granted by suppliers.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yiu Chi To, age 53, is the founder of our Group, the executive Director
and Chairman of our Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
of our company on 16 August 2013. He is responsible for formulating
corporate strategies and overseeing the Group’s business development
and operation as well as monitoring the Group's administration. He
also plays a role in developing new technology and innovations with
our Group's research and development team and maintaining good
relationships with our major customers. Mr. Yiu has more than 30 years of
working experience in the LED industry. Mr. Yiu had successfully registered
patents in the PRC for the new technologies that he had developed,
including “Double sided light emitting backlight” in 2003, “Bottom-side
dual-efficient LED white light” in 2004, and “LED with heat dissipation” in
2005. From 2009 to present, Mr. Yiu also served as a deputy director for the
Shenzhen Light Emitting Diode Industry Association.

Mr. Yiu graduated from Fujian Jinjiang Neikeng High School in 1978. Prior
to the establishment of the Group, from 1979 to 1981 he worked in an
electronic watch manufacturing company initially as an assembly line
worker, and was later promoted to a manager where he was involved in
sales and marketing of the electronic watches and in 1982 he started a
business in the electronic watch industry and ceased the business in 1984
before establishing the Group. In 1984, Mr. Yiu founded Wai Chi Electronics
Co. Mr. Yiu is the father of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai and
father-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Chen Chung Po, age 38, was appointed as executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of our Company on 16 August 2013. He is
responsible for the day-to-day management of our Group including
administration, procurement, production as well as financial management.
Mr. Chen received his Bachelor of Arts in Business Studies degree from
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2000. He has more than 10
years of working experience in banking and finance fields. After Graduation,
he joined Bank of China (Hong Kong) as a credit analyst and has been
gradually promoted to Branch Manager from 2000 to 2006. From 2006 to
2010, he worked with Sun Hung Kai Group of companies serving as the
Vice President of Sales Division in Wealth Management when he resigned
in 2011. From 2011 to 2012, he was a person licensed to carry on Type 2
regulated activity. Prior to joining our Group, he was the sales director in
GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited from 2011 to 2013. He also
held the Directorship of Hong Kong Critical Component Manufacturing
Association from 2012 to present. Mr. Chen is the husband of Ms. Yiu Kwan
Yu, son-in-law of Mr. Yiu Chi To and brother-in-law of Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai.
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Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, age 31, was appointed as executive Director of our
Company on 16 August 2013. She is also the Sales and Marketing Manager
of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited since 2009. Ms. Yiu joined us in 2008
and served as Sales and Marketing Executive initially. She is responsible
for the sales and marketing of our LED lighting division and she is also in
charge of our research and development department of our LED lighting
division. Ms. Yiu received her Bachelor's degree of Applied Science in
Electrical Engineering from The University of British Columbia in May
2008 and her Master of Lighting degree from the Queensland University
of Technology in May 2012. Ms. Yiu was admitted as Engineer by the
Corporation of Seven Wardens Inc. in 2008. She also held the Directorship
of Hong Kong Critical Component Manufacturing Association from 2009
to 2012 and the Directorship of Hong Kong Opto Mechatronics Industry
Association from 2012 to present. Ms. Yiu is the elder daughter of Mr. Yiu
Chi To, wife of Mr. Chen Chung Po and elder sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai.

Mr. Chen Wei Wu, age 52, was appointed as executive Director of our
Company on 11 March 2014. He is the Financial Controller of Shenzhen
Wai Chi since 2010. He is responsible for the financial management and
day-to-day financial operation in the PRC region. He has 30 years of
experience in commercial and finance fields. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Chen
served as Accounting Officer in Jinan Chemicals Factory at Hengyang
City of Hunan. From 1992 to 1997, he served as Financial Controller in
Shenzhen Zhonggiao Group at Shenzhen. From 1997 to 2001, he served
as Vice General Manager and Chief Financial Controller in Shenzhen
Shennan Merchants Group. From 2001 to 2006, he served as the Assistant
to the General Manager and head of the Capital Department in Shenzhen
Saigedasheng Joint-stock Company Limited. From 2006 to 2008, he
served as the General Manager of the Audit Planning Department in GD
Hengfeng Investment Group Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2010, he served as the
General Manager of Group Finance Division in Shenzhen Shangtianran
Investment Company Limited. Mr. Chen studied and graduated from
the correspondence course in industrial accountancy and received the
professional certificate in industrial accountancy from the Hunan College
of Finance and Economics in July 1987. In October 1994, Mr. Chen was
conferred by the Ministry of Finance in the PRC the qualification of an
accountant specializing in corporate accounting. In April 2011, Mr. Chen
was admitted as Senior International Finance Manager by the International
Financial Management Association. In June 2012, Mr. Chen obtained his
Master of Business Administration degree from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. In November 2014, Mr. Chen obtained his Doctor of
Business Administration degree from the Victoria University of Switzerland.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

EHLZ L 315% - R2013F8 A 16HEER(T
BARRFRITES ° B E2009FRINBEEN
EERAAMBEERTSHEELE - thiact
FR2008F MMAZREE - RYIEFHE RTiGH
EBITHAES » BEEDRBAIMEE RTHH
& - TALEDIRASNHENRIINEEA - thx
TH2008F 5 ARG R B Rt DAZBMNEFL
IRERAREE LB - WH201265 ARBE
TEEHE KSR BRAE 207 - Pk 72008
FRERIRRSHREMNLIZA o 5 I7572009
FENFEECEBMB T HDHRIEED
GHEERS  RNFESEETEBHHEE
TEHENEERYG - kBB T AKEE L
EZRET  RERZLEZAARBEELZ LT 2
I

BREERSCE - 525%  M2014F3A 1M BEZEAR
RATIHITEE - [HE2010FEREERYIES
MBTKEE PR ERNMEEEREE
BEEE - BREERERMREEI0FLR
MR1984FE E 19925 « BRAEENNEEETmE
FEL TREEEEHEE o RI192F £ 19974
M ERRINEDRIIFE R B R FRE -
1997 F E2001F M - R FEBEEEEET
BB B R ABEL o FA20014F 20065 A -
BRI EREERNBR A FIETLLRE
BB REARIBEE - R2006F £2008F - #
RERELIREESERRAREEEZEE
RIABALIR o FA2008F 20104 + AR
MAAREBRAREEEE MBI ALIE -
PR 5 A B M B A 2B T B T 2 AT AR AR
217 F7REETMBIESHEEX
B o 994108 - PR A E R BB BEER
GETANER - BELEGE o R20119F4H - IR
SAEERERMBEEBERA LB RERI B
EIERD o 2012F6 A - BRI EN T mE EBE
RERESTEERELEM - HR2014F 118
PREERIGTHZHERENEIEHEEE L

B o



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

EE - - GREEBABREES

Ms. Yong Jian Hui, age 39, was appointed as executive Director of
our Company on 11 March 2014. She joined our Company since 2003.
She is currently the Deputy General Manager and the Head of Sales
Department of Shenzhen Wai Chi Opto Technology Company Limited. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing of our LED backlight products.
She has more than 10 years of working experience in sales and marketing
of backlight products. Prior to her joining our Company, Ms. Yong served as
the head of Sales Department at Wah Mei Electronics (Shenzhen) Company
Limited from 2000 to 2002. Ms. Yong received the certificate on achieving
the third grade in University English from the Hunan Radio & TV University
in March 1998 and her Master of Business Administration degree from the
Southwest Jiaotong University in June 2012.

Mr. Peng Jian, age 43, was appointed as executive Director of
our Company on 25 November 2015. He is responsible for market
development in respect of the application of the Company’s products
in the telecommunication field. Mr. Peng has over 20 years of working
experience in the fields of automotive, telecommunication, consumable
electronic products, finance and investment. He graduated from Jilin
University of Technology (merged with Jilin University in 2000) and
received his Bachelor’s degree in Automotive and Tractor Mechanical
Engineering in 1995. In 2006, Mr. Peng obtained his Master of Business
Administration degree from the Beijing University. From August 1995
to September 1998, Mr. Peng served as an assembly line supervisor and
quality control manager in an automobile parts enterprise being a Sino-
American joint venture. From September 1998 to June 2012, he worked in
Nokia (China) Investment Company Limited and his last position was Head
of Sales Capability. From June 2012 to June 2013, he worked with Samsung
(China) Investment Company Limited serving as group head in the New
Market Development Department (Mobile). From September 2013 to
June 2015, he served as executive general manager of the Marketing
Department in China Innovative Capital Management Limited during
which he accumulated experience in relation to financial investment.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, age 52, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director ("INED") of our Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Au Yeung is currently a director of Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited. Prior
to establishing his CPA practice in mid-1992, Mr. Au Yeung worked in an
international accounting firm where he was responsible for doing the
auditing work for several well-known listed companies in Hong Kong. He
also used to be the Finance Manager of a private limited company in Hong
Kong and of a Hong Kong listed company named Next Media Limited (Stock
Code: 282, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
formerly known as Paramount Publishing Group Limited). Mr. Au Yeung is
currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and the
Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Mr. Au Yeung was appointed in May 2006 and is currently acting as an
independent non-executive director of Amvig Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2300, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
formerly known as Vision Grande Group Holdings Limited).

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, age 53, was appointed as INED of our Company
on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently a Partner at Messrs. Fairbairn, Catley, Low & Kong.
He has been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court since 2005. He
obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the University of Wolverhampton in
February 2002 and his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from University
of Hong Kong in June 2003. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree in Engineering in November 1986 and also a Master of Business
Administration degree in December 1997 from the University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Chen was a Member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now
known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1990
and currently holds a practising certificate from the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He became a Certified Public Accountant
in 1990 and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants in 1994.
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Prior to establishing his career in the legal field, Mr. Chen worked in an
international accounting firm from 1986 to 1991 as a Staff Accountant and
was eventually promoted to the position of Audit Supervisor. In 1992 to
1993, Mr. Chen became an Internal Auditor at the Hong Kong branch of
a bank. In 1993 to 2000, Mr. Chen worked at The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in the capacity as a Manager and was eventually promoted
to the position of Senior Manager. In 2001 to 2002, Mr. Chen worked at the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a Manager where he
was responsible for day-to-day supervision of financial intermediaries. Mr.
Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Fujian
Start Group Co,, Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600734), on 20 May 2014 and PPS International (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock code: 8201), during the period from 19 November 2014 to 30
December 2015.

Mr. Ho Chi Wai, age 41, was appointed as INED of our Company on 11
March 2014.

Mr. Ho is currently a partner of SRF Partners & Co., CPAs. He obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Lingnan University in
November 1997 and a Master’s degree in Finance from Jinan University in
December 2012. He is currently a practicing certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a certified tax adviser at the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an associate of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho has over 18 years of experience in audit assurance and business
consulting. Prior to his own practice in 2012, Mr. Ho worked as an Audit
Senior in a local accounting firm from 1997 to 2000. From 2000 to 2010,
Mr. Ho was the audit manager in a sizable accounting firm and from 2010
to 2011 he became the Principal of the group the said accountancy firm
belonged in.

Mr. Ho acted as an independent non-executive Director of Ming Kei
Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8239, a company listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange) from June 2012 to October 2013. He was
also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee during his time acting as an independent non-
executive Director for Ming Kei Holdings Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai, age 29, joined our Company since 2011 and is
currently the General Manager Assistant of Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics
Company Limited mainly assisting the General Manager in executing tasks.
She is also currently the Senior Marketing Executive/Product Merchandiser
of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited where she is responsible for product
development and marketing. Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Yiu worked
as a sales lead in a retail group from 2007 to 2009. Ms. Yiu obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree with major in Economics from Simon Fraser
University, British Columbia, Canada in May 2011. Ms. Yiu is the younger
daughter of Mr. Yiu Chi To, younger sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and sister-in-
law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Luo Zeng Chang, age 34, joined our Company since 2003 and is
currently the General Manager of our Project Design Department of
Shenzhen Wai Chi. Mr. Luo is responsible for supervising the designs
of our products. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo was a research
development engineer in a small to medium size LED backlight module
manufacturing company from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Luo was then employed as
a senior technician at Shenzhen Wai Chi in 2003 and was the leader of our
Design Project Department from 2004 to 2007. He was then appointed as
the Vice General Manager of our Design Project Department at Shenzhen
Wai Chi in 2008. Mr. Luo obtained a graduation certificate specializing in
Mechatronics from Jiaying University in July 2001.

Mr. Pei Yanfeng, age 46, joined our Company since 2008 and is currently
the Factory President of Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware (Huizhou) Company
Limited. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Pei was a Mould Assistant
Engineer at a company specialised in developing and manufacturing
hardware in Heinan from 1992 to 1995. He was then a Mould Engineer
at a factory in Dong Guan from 1995 to 1997. From 1997 to 1998, he was
a Mould Engineer at Shenzhen Konka factory. He was then the Mould
Design Personnel in Charge of a company from 1998 to 2001. From 2001
to 2004, he was the Head of the Department of Plastic Moulds at a factory
in Shenzhen. He was then the Manager of a mould factory in Shenzhen
from 2005 to 2006. Between 2007 and 2008, he was the Mould Manager of
a telecommunications company in Shenzhen. Mr. Pei obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Materials Engineering specialised in Moulding from Xian
Technological University in July 1992.
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Mr. Zeng Yan Ming, age 47, joined our Company since 2011 and is
currently the Human Resources Administrative Supervisor in Shenzhen
Wai Chi Lighting Company Limited where he is responsible for the overall
management of personnel. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Zeng was
the Head of the Manufacturing Department in a company specialised in
manufacturing plastic products and electrical appliances from 1993 to
1997. He then became the Inspection Officer and Chief Administrative
Officer of Baodeli Computer Hardware Company Limited from 1997 to
2002. Mr. Zeng then became the Manager of the Management Department
and Inspection Manager at Dongguan Eastech Electrical Products
Company Limited, a subsidiary of KME Group from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Zeng
then became the Administrative Manager of Personnel and Manager of
the Inspection Department at a company specialised in manufacturing
plastic products from 2005 to 2009. He then became the Manager of
Human Resources at an environmentally friendly enterprise specialised in
researching and promoting products for water purification from 2010 to
2011 before joining our Company. Mr. Zeng obtained a Bachelor's degree
in Economics specializing in Industrial Enterprises Management from
Xiangtan University in June 1992.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, age 34, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of our Company on 11 March 2014 and appointed as the Company
Secretary of our Company on 12 November 2015.

Mr. Cheung is responsible for our financial management other than the
PRC. Mr. Cheung has over 9 years of experience in audit assurance. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as audit trainee in Eric Ng & Co.
from June 2003 to July 2004 and as audit manager in Jonten Hopkins CPA
Limited from July 2004 to March 2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an honors degree in Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy in November 2003. He is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified
tax adviser at the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IERERLAF

LB LE - 4758 0 B0 FEMALRRR - B
BFRYTESBABRAAZANERITE
EE BEEIERER - MAKRRARA -
1993 £ 19974 - B4R —REFIRES
BERRBENARIZEEDEE - FHER
1997 F Z 2002 BIR1FHEM A BER QA
AR EF RITIARES o 1R A20024F 20055
BKMESE[E Ff /B A FlDongguan Eastech Electrical
Products Company Limited B ‘& 32 3 48 32 K 7 23
#LIP o FA2005F E2000F - BILE B —HEM
BRI E MM A Rl 2 AFITERACE AR R EB
I8 o PRAZRRAFIA] - R20105F 220114 - B
SR —HEPIRE KB FKERORRE
EWANEREIR o B HER199296 A BUSM
BABGEETBN B TECETIE -

REAMER M BLREE

al

RABIESLAE © 34578 0 M2014F3ANHEZTA
RANBETELRES - WH2015F 11 A 12BEZE
TEAERARIWE -

REEBERBEUIIMNMBENTEER - RELE
HAEBBOFH TR - MAKRKEA - K
S A A20034F 6 A E20045 7 B EBERE &
EMEBATMETEE £ - Wik200457 8 E2014
FIREBPRELDSAMEBAER AR
MIZEET IR o R AR 2003511 ARV B HIE
TAREGH(LB)NBLEBN - REEBAS
e ASEMesta « KRBT ARSE
MAEEFEEREBRE2 S MBKA -



28

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&EIERERLF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present this report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is domiciled in
Hong Kong and has its principal place of business at 6th Floor, Liven House,
Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Reporting Period") are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements
on pages 57 to 150 of this annual report. The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend and resolve not to declare any final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015. Interim dividend of HK$0.02
per share has been paid during the year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM") to be held on 20 May 2016 (Friday),
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 17 May 2016
(Tuesday) to 20 May 2016 (Friday), both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 May 2016 (Monday). The record date for the
entitlement to attend the AGM will be on 20 May 2016 (Friday).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 61 to 62 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders is approximately HK$299,321,000 (2014: approximately
HK$303,321,000) which representing the balance of share premium
account which can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set
out in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on total
borrowings (including bank borrowing and obligations under finance
leases) to the equity (including all capital and reserves) of the Company,
was 62% (2014: 54%).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 2,479 employees. The Group
recognized the importance of maintaining good relationship with its
employees and retaining competent staff to ensure operational efficiency
and effectiveness. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
not encountered any significant problems with its employees, and there
had not been any dispute between the Group and its employees that
might have caused any disruption to the Group's business or operation.
The Group has had no difficulty in recruiting and retaining experienced
staff. The remuneration of each employee of the Group is determined on
the basis of his or her performance and responsibility. The Group provides
training to employees.
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The total staff cost incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$268,809,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained the percentage of public float as prescribed in
the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period and at any time before and up to
the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2015
and up to and including the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
Mr. Chen Wei Wu
Ms. Yong Jian Hui
Mr. Peng Jian appointed on 25 November 2015
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang

Mr. Ho Chi Wai

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles of
association, each of Mr. Yiu Chi To, Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan
Yu, all of whom were appointed as executive directors on 16 August 2013
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Peng Jian has been appointed as executive director by the Board on
25 November 2015 as addition to the existing Board and shall hold office
of his directorship until the next annual general meeting of the Company,
and he, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out
on pages 21 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yiu Chi To, Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for three years from
16 August 2013, and may be terminated by either party by giving not less

than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for three years from 11 March 2014, and
may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice.

Mr. Peng Jian has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for three years from 25 November 2015, and may be terminated by either

party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang and Mr. Ho Chi Wai
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 11 March 2014 and may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than two months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation

(except for statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference to
their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the prevailing
market conditions. None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group'’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children (under 18 years of age), or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement whose objectives are
to enable a Director of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to and including the
date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sub-section headed “Connected Transaction”
below and “Related Party Transactions and Balances” in note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party to and in which a Director or a controlling shareholder had a material
interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2015 or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive personnel of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (‘Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERTETHRAEREERTAR
HMEBZBR RS - HEROKRE
HZEmNKRR

MR2015F12A31H  ARBESTREEITHA
BRANFREEEEZE(ERRESFREE
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Approximate

Number and percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest class of securities shareholding

HHHAR IREEBEAY

EEpE B REntE Pl Bt
(Note 2)
(B&E2)

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 1) Beneficial owner 130,211,000 (L) 65.11%

BREE A (B EE 1) ¥t/ Z=PN
Notes: 3T

1. Mr.Yiu ChiTo holds 100% of the issued share capital of Rexell Technology Company
Limited, which is the controlling shareholder holding approximately 65.11% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

2. The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or
the relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
and chief executive personnel of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they had taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PARTIES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, so far as the directors and chief executive officer
of the Company were aware, the following persons and corporations
(excluding the directors and chief executive officer of the Company) had
interests or short positions in any of the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company and Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who, directly or indirectly, is interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group:
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Approximate
percentage
Number of of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
BEBRITREZ
IRER & 5% REnitE RO E BOBEHL
Rexell Technology Company Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 130,211,000 65.11%
HERBRBR AT (K BHEEAA
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 130,211,000 65.11%
kB A (M EE2) REEEE N ER
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 130,211,000 65.11%
B 7 20+ (B EE3) [T e
Notes: F3E -

1. Rexell Technology Company Limited directly holds 130,211,000 shares representing
approximately 65.11% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Yiu Chi To is the legal and beneficial owner of all the issued shares of Rexell
Technology Company Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Rexell Technology Company Limited under the SFO.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be mastered in the
shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a director of
the Company may be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which the director shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his or
his duty as a director of the Company, to the extent permitted by law. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force since the adoption of the
articles of association of the Company on 27 October 2014 and is currently
in force at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for certain legal actions brought against its directors and officers.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of its/his compliance with the terms and undertakings of the deed of
non-competition provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 4 November
2014). The INEDs of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all the terms and undertakings under the Deed of Non

— competition have been complied with by the controlling shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has had two
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which is
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of such a continuing connected transaction (as
defined under the Listing Rules) are set out below in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules:
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Tenancy Agreement with Maxtone Electronics Limited
(“Maxtone”)

Maxtone leased to our Group a property located at Unit A, 6th Floor,
Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the
"Property’). The term for the existing tenancy agreements in respect of
the Property commenced from 1 April 2015, and will expire on 31 March
2017 at a monthly rent of HK$85,000 exclusive of rates, air-conditioning,
management charges and other outgoings. As at 31 December 2015,
Maxtone was held as to 60% by Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok, the son of Mr. Yiu Chi To,
as to 20% by Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, a director of the Company and as to 20% by
Ms. Yiu Kwan Wai, a member of our senior management and therefore it is
a connected party of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, total rental paid or payable by
the Group under the Tenancy Agreement amounted to HK$969,000 which
did not exceed the annual caps for this transaction.

Opinion from the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and Auditor on the Continuing Connected Transaction

The Directors (including all INEDs) have reviewed the continuing
connected transaction and confirmed that this transaction was entered

into:
(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) onnormal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it and on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING"), the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company has received
an unqualified letter from SHINEWING containing their finding and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed
above.
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The Company's auditors have reported to the Directors that during the year
ended 31 December 2015, the above-mentioned continuing connected
transaction had been approved by the Board, had been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such transaction
and the annual cap amount set out in the relevant agreement for the
transaction had not been exceeded.

Personal Guarantee given by Controlling Shareholder
Certain banking facilities of the Group were guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of such basic loans was approximately HK$85,941,000.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the largest supplier accounted
for 13.4% of the Group's purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted
for 32.8% of the Group's total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for 34.9% of the Group's revenue and the five largest customers accounted
for 61.9% of the Group's total revenue.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) has an interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$183,000 (2014: approximately HK$32,000).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased or redeemed any of the listed shares of the
Company. The Controlling shareholder of the Company, Rexell Technology
Company Limited has disposed of 19,789,000 listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company and its management are committed to maintain good
corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence to all shareholders. The Company
believes that good corporate governance is essential for continual growth
and enhancement of shareholder’s value. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company has applied and complied with the code provisions
stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices with reference to
the latest development in corporate governance. The Group's principal
corporate governance practices and compliance with code provisions
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to 54 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the reporting period, the Group is committed to continuously
promote the long-term, stable and sustainable development of employees,
environmental protection and social responsibilities.

(a) Care for our employees
The Group deeply understands the importance of good employment
relationship and personnel retention in ensuring the operational
efficiency and effectiveness. The majority of the management worked
their way up from the bottom, so the number of staff has been
remained stable. Apart from the corresponding training given by the
Company based on their positions, we also offer them suitable welfare
and medical coverage as well as ancillary facilities to their families,
such as couple and family accommodation and childcare services
in factory areas, so that they can concentrate on their work. At the
same time, the Group attaches great importance to the workplace
safety of the three production facilities currently located in Shenzhen
and Huizhou in Guangdong province and Yichang in Hubei in which
no significant occupational accidents was occurred since their
commencement of production.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

BO - HEFEEEA QT RS

HE2015F12A3BIEFER « ARRHET
] BT /B8 7 &) 48F 42 B (0] o BB 12 AN R) T ] _ETh 3%
% o REE2015F12A31AILFEER - KAF]
PERRARER - SR RIEAR A RIHE 719,789,000
RE BT °

¥ER

ARBNEEREBAEEFRIINEEER
ZERUZBRRWEAE  BHEEMBIE
MRRA - RRRIRERFHEREREERS
BREMEAERREEE/EE - HE2015
F12A318 » ARRIE R AT_ £ R R
B4 HMEREATRREEE AREZR
A - WANLAE ST E A AR TE R ST RIS © N A
S2ELEEANRNERYTHENELEE
AHR c ARENTREEEAFRIETR
ERFHBHRAFREANELMAANEEER
HEA -

RERTEHESEE

AEERHERN A BRAONETERE - R
BREARMEEENRY - BEMAFER
JE o

(@) ETEAE

SERABRERTSRERBE - BBATNU
TR & B R RE - BIRE K% R
BN BETEEN—E#FET  BRTHE
BAReEE TR EKIEHAEENLET
Sh - B RETREEEMNER REER
B RAERARMRERE  WEXER
REBE  NBEREHERERBESE  FH
REL LB EB N TE - AREE+S
EERBRBEREFINEIMNEHBIEEE
E-EEZAENEEREN TIFRER
2 BREUR—BEREEAIESK -



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

(b) Environmental Production

()

As a one-stop service provider for energy-saving LED energy
management, the Group not only renders its customer products that
save energy and reduce emission, but has also been getting involved
and promoting environmental protection. The Group introduces
the green concept into daily life and work by implanting the idea
in the office habit of our staff. The management of the Group pays
attention to every detail in life with the attitude of “starting from
small steps” and makes moderate adjustments with an aim of saving
energy and reducing emission, in which environmental friendly LED
lighting is used in the office; the temperature of air-conditioning is
remained at above 25°C; the power of office equipment are switched
off when not using; conversing water as well as reducing paper use
and printing. While implementing the plan, the Group puts on green
labels and reminders in different areas of the office and publishes
internal newsletter and intranet to remind every staff of recycling and
energy saving practices in the office. The Group also carries out energy
saving review regularly so as to acknowledge the effectiveness of the

environmental and energy saving measures.

Social Responsibilities

The Group proactively participates in various social activities that
contributed to the society. In 2015, the Group provided a secondary
school in Yichang city in Hubei province, China a scholarship of
RMB36,000 and a donation of RMB30,000 to this city to subsidize the
improvised rural families.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed with management the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015,
the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed auditing,

internal controls and financial reporting matters.

AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by SHINEWING.
A resolution to re-appoint SHINEWING as our auditor will be submitted for
shareholders’ approval at our forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. YIU Chi To
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed in maintaining high standards of corporate
governance (“CG"). The Board believes that commitment in CG practices
will definitely benefit Company’s shareholders in long term. For the year
ended 31 December 2015 ("FY2015"), the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules in force at that time.

The Board considers that good CG is central to safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the Group.
The Board will continuously review and improve the CG practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision

making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

With a view to further improving the Company’s CG practices, the
following actions were taken in 2015:

Appointment of INEDs with appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management experience with regulatory
entities to further broaden the collective knowledge, perspective and
skill of the Board.

All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs and all of them have
appropriated professional accounting qualifications and financial

management experience.

Introduction of a program of continuous professional development
for Directors by providing internal training to the Board.

To adopt Board diversity policy to recognize and embrace the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2015.

THE BOARD

The Board focuses on the overall strategic development and is also
responsible for monitoring the financial performance and the internal
controls of the Group. With a wide range of expertise and a balance
of skills, the INEDs bring independent judgment on issues of strategic
direction, development, performance and risk management through their
contribution at Board meetings and committee work.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

All of the Directors have service agreements or letters of appointment and
the details of their terms are set out in the Report of the Directors on pages
30 to 31 of this annual report. All Directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting. Retiring Directors are eligible
for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors at annual general
meetings is dealt with by separate individual resolutions. Where vacancies
arise at the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board
by the Nomination Committee as more fully explained below under the

section on Nomination Committee.

Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board has six executive Directors and
three INEDs, as shown on page 3 of this annual report. Biographies of the

Company’s Directors are shown on pages 21 to 25 of this annual report.

INEDs ensure the Board accounts for the interest of all shareholders and
subject matters are considered objectively. The Board has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the INEDs to be
independent. INEDs have accounted for 33.3% of the full Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

To the best of the Directors' knowledge, there is no financial, business and
family relationship among members of the Board except that Mr. Yiu Chi
To is the father of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and father-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po,
Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu are a married couple.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer
are Mr. Yiu Chi To and Mr. Chen Chung Po, respectively.

Induction, Information and ongoing Development

All Directors were kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may have affected the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. In addition, the Group has implemented a continuing
development programme to update the Directors (in particular INEDs) on
the macro economics and business environment relevant to the Group's
major operations.

In addition to the above, each newly-appointed Director received a
tailored induction programme, which covers briefing on the Company’s
overview by the Chief Executive Officer, meeting with management and
meeting with the Company’s external legal adviser on directors’ legal role
and responsibilities. To further maximize the contribution from INEDs,
separate meeting between the Chief Executive Officer and INEDs was held
in January and August 2015 to address business and related issues. Written
procedures are also in place for Directors to seek independent professional
advice in performing their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense.
No request was made by any Director for such independent professional
advice during the FY2015.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development
(continued)

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
accordance with code provision A.6.5 contained in the CG Code. Each
of the Directors received a series of training locally or overseas, relevant
trainings and briefings included, among others:

development of national and global economy;

national policy outlook;

corporate governance;

regulatory updates; and

LED backlight and lighting industry development trend, etc.
All of them have also provided to the Company their records of training
attended or fulfillment of ongoing development for the year, the
information of which has been entered in the register of directors’ training
records maintained and updated by the Company from time to time.

The following summarises the compliance status of all Directors of the
Company in respect of code provision A.6.5 during the year:
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In compliance

with Code A.6.5
Name of Directors EEHR E<r<rRIZEA.6.51%
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) BRI E(EE) v
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) — FREERESCH (7TECAE#) v
Mes. Yiu Kwan Yu BB T v
Mr. Chen Wei Wu BREZE A 4
Ms. Yong Jian Hui EEBL T 4
Mr. Peng Jian ZEEE v
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITESE
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BSR4 v/
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang PR B 72 5 A= v
Mr. Ho Chi Wai Al BT 4 v




ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administration functions to management. It also gives clear directions as to
the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the matters that
management must report back and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of
the Company. The Board determines on regular basis which functions are
reserved to the Board and which are delegated to management.

The Board exercises a number of duties and powers which include:
formulating of the Group's long-term strategy;
approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
reviewing operational and financial performance;
approving financial results and public announcements;
reviewing the effectiveness of internal control;
authorizing material borrowings;
setting dividend policy;
approving appointment to the Board and senior management; and
setting the Group's remuneration policy.
To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board established
four committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee, and the risk management
committee.
Board Processes
All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in the furtherance
of their duties. The Company has also arranged appropriate director and

officer liability insurance cover in respect of any potential legal actions that
might be taken against its Directors.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes (continued)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. The Chairman mainly focuses on Group strategies and is
responsible for chairing and managing the efficient operation of the
Board and ensuring that all key issues are considered by the Board in a
timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors
for all regular Board meetings and the Directors can include matters
for discussion in the agenda whenever they consider appropriate and
necessary. Agenda and accompanying Board papers in respect of regular
Board meetings are despatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable
time before the meeting. Directors have to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at board meetings and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the Company Secretary. All Directors have free access to board papers and
related materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely
manner, enabling the Board to make informed decision on matters placed
before it. In FY2015, four Board meetings were held and the attendance
details are shown as follows:
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Board Meetings

attended in
FY2015
—E-LFHMEREE
Name of Directors EEnE HEEEEEERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Chairman) PhEESEE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chief Executive Officer) — FREERESCH (7TECAE#) 4/4
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu kEB L 4/4
Mr. Chen Wei Wu PRAEE S A 4/4
Ms. Yong Jian Hui L+ a/4
Mr. Peng Jian* TR A 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITESE
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BUSREE S A4 4/4
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang BoR B 72 5 A 4/4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai ] B ST A 4/4

* Mr. Peng Jian was appointed as director of the Company on 25 November 2015.

There was one Board meeting held in year 2015 after his appointment as a director.
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BOARD’S COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk management
committee,. Each of them has specific terms of reference to consider
matters relating to specific areas and to advise the Board on such
matters. INEDs play a significant role in these committees to ensure that
independent and objective views are taken. The list of the Chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out on page 3 of this annual
report.

(a) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company was established in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and
internal controls.

The Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and
external auditors the Group's significant internal controls and financial
matters (as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference),

including:

the Group’s interim and annual financial statements with

recommendation to the Board for approval

the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory

requirements;

the Group’s financial reporting, internal control and risk

management;

discussing with the external auditors the nature, scope of the
audit and significant accounting and audit issues;

connected transactions; and

managing and overseeing the external auditors.
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BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)

(a) Audit Committee (continued)
The Audit Committee has the power to conduct investigations into
any matter within the scope of responsibility of the Audit Committee
and is authorized to obtain independent professional advice if it
deems necessary in discharging its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee has been satisfied with the review of the audit
scope, process and effectiveness, independence of SHINEWING and
thus recommended the Board for the approval of the 2015 financial

statements.

In FY2015, three meetings were held by Audit Committee with 100%
attendance by all Audit Committee’s members.

(b) Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management, and ensures that no Director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee also reviews and approves (i) compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise
fair and not excessive; and (ii) compensation arrangement(s) relating
to dismissal or removal of Director(s) for misconduct to ensure that
such compensation arrangement is consistent with contractual terms

and is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the determination
of the remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee.

In determining the remuneration for Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)

(b) Remuneration Committee (continued)

(c)

The Remuneration Committee meets to determine the policy for the
remuneration of Directors and assess the performance of executive
Directors and approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts. In FY2015, two meetings were held by Remuneration
Committee with 100% attendance by all Remuneration Committee

members.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so as to

ensure that all nominations are fair and reasonable.

The functional roles of the Nomination Committee are:

to establish a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment or reappointment of Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board for new appointments

or reappointments of executive and non-executive directors;

to evaluate the performance of Directors and determine if they
should be reappointed; and

to be responsible for significant issues concerning the nomination
of Directors during the year.

The Nomination Committee meets to discuss the procedures and
criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating candidates
for directorship and agreed that such criteria should include the
candidates’ professional background, their experiences and their past
track record with other listed companies (if any). In FY2015, Three
meetings were held by Nomination Committee with 100% attendance
by all Nomination Committee members
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BOARD’S COMMITTEES (continued)

(d) Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee was established on 28 August 2015,
with specific written terms of reference. The members of the Risk
Management Committee comprise three members which include the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ"), Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") and one
INED of the Company. The Board has appointed Mr. Chen Chung Po
(CEO), Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (CFO) and Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (INED)
as members of the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Chen Chung
Po has also been appointed as the Chairman of the Risk Management

Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the risk management committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness of

the risk management function.

In FY2015, one meeting with attendance by all Risk Management

Committee’s members was held.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, SHINEWING, in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$880,000 and
HK$200,000 respectively. The details and fee for non-audit services are set

out below:
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company. The review has covered the
financial, operational, compliance and risk management aspects of the

Group.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and
reviewing the effectiveness of such internal control system on an annual
basis through the Audit Committee.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and comply with the requirement of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) ("Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”’) and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing
Rules. The auditors are responsible for forming an independent opinion,
based on the audit, on the financial statements prepared by the Directors
and reporting the opinion solely to the Company’s shareholders. The
Independent Auditor’s Report is set out on pages 55 to 56 of this annual

report.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is committed to
maintaining an open and effective investor communication policy and
to update investors on relevant information on its business on a timely

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with the
investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged and
handled by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.waichiholdings.com and updated regularly on a timely basis.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION
(continued)

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ right and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. The Company will announce
and publish its interim and annual results in a timely manner, which is well
before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules. Separate resolutions will
be proposed at the general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the re-election of individual Directors, if any.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The
Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event in
which the Chairman and all Directors will make an effort to attend. External
auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual general
meeting and are also available to assist the Directors in addressing queries
from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation
and content of the auditors’ report. All shareholders are given prior notice
on a timely basis together with a detailed agenda. The Board, according to
the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The
results of the Company will be declared at the meeting, and announced
timely on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Any shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more of
the Company’s total issued share capital shall be entitled to request the
Board in writing to convene an extraordinary general meeting. Upon
receiving such request, the Board shall issue a notice of extraordinary
general meeting within 21 days and hold an extraordinary general meeting
within two months from the receipt of such request. If within 21 days of
the receipt of such request the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the shareholder(s) proposing to convene an extraordinary general
meeting in writing may himself (themselves) convene an extraordinary

general meeting in the same manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders must prove to the Board that they really own the equity
interests of the Company (e.g. by providing shareholding documents
etc.). The Company suggests shareholders should submit their enquiries
in writing (including by email, facsimile and mail) and provide sufficient
contact details so that the Company can process their enquiries in a proper
and timely manner.

Shareholders may contact the Company via the following means:

Address: 6/F, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Email: barry.cheung@waichi.com

Tel No..  (852) 3760 2805

Fax No. (852) 2341 8144

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.
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IRERAER ()
BRROEFSRHEHANERF

BRARNEZSEAERERE AR RMNE

m(RERRXHE) - AREERRABE

EAN(ERER FERET)RLIERNE

SJZ » WG R SRR AR B RHAR A B & 70 MBS
ERRRIRERRIE -

BERAGEBATHETRNAARBREE
)

ik BENEHRBERETIRAEXR
Eeiz

BEHAL ¢ barry.cheung@waichi.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continued)

Constitutional documents

Rights of the shareholders are also provided under the articles of association
of the Company. The articles of association of the Company which was
adopted on 27 October 2014 was drafted in line with provisions of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which came into effect on 3 March
2014, the Listing Rules and current corporate practices. An up to date
consolidated version of the articles of association of the Company is
available on the Company’s website and the HKEx's website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 BEN R E

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

feikPia

Shineﬂ)in?'

TO THE MEMBERS OF WAI CHI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages
57 to 150, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
24 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H31 8 [HFE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and other gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expense

Research and development expenses

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before tax

Income tax expense

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic and diluted

EF

HAUA R Bl 7

HE K7 HRX

TR

H A& RS

IELER

FATERRAR 9

BR%AT (5 18) FE

i 10

FEBR)FE 1l

SR (EE)BF
AR R EE 14

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—HF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
(restated)

(#eE5)

1,100,491 1,165,579
(854,979) (889,736)
245,512 275,843
10,788 6,839
(25,926) (22,918)
(107,129) (99,466)
(77,313) (413)
(53,059) (48,625)
(30,534) (29,672)
(37,661) 81,588
(1,106) (20,395)
(38,767) 61,193
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
(0.19) 0.39
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEBakEMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H31 8 [HFE

2015 2014
—B-HF —EB—mF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTER FHET
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BR)RE (38,767) 61,193
Other comprehensive (expense) income HETREFIEZEEN
that may be subsequently reclassified Hih2m (B ) iz

to profit or loss

Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBINRIEELIER
foreign operations E¥ (33,026) 364
Total comprehensive (expense) FEZMHE(BX) W=

income for the year #z (71,793) 61,557
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 31 December 2015 72015512 H31H

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Deferred taxation

Current assets

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade receivables

Bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amount due from a related company

Pledged bank deposits

Deposits with bank

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings — due within one year
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year
Income tax payables

Net current assets

FRBEE

WE -« BB MRE
AT EZIE
RIEFRIE

REBEE

FE
TEHEERIE
FEUBR TR

FEW 1R
TBREIE - Bek
H At fEYRIE
FEUR BEE N B 5RIE
BRI TR
RITHER
RITER LIRS

RBAE

FEfRRR

ANES

Hi N 7E kB E A

RITER— 1 FAREIH

MEMEFER
—R1FERDIE

FEFFRSH

REBEEFE

22
22
22
23

24

2015 2014
—ZE—RHF —ZE—pE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
(restated)

(#eE5)

285,415 312,335
39,364 42,840
6,216 1,349
330,995 356,524
222,385 201,120
967 967
347,231 532,657
206,399 92,754
44,822 36,324
477 -
225,710 56,715
29,505 -
240,013 331,864
1,317,509 1,252,401
183,936 222,643
444,708 284,453
43,213 44432
345,719 348,521
4,190 2,252
10,414 17,141
1,032,180 919,442
285,329 332,959
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REPBAARR K (E)

As at 31 December 2015 720155128318

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
— due more than one year
Obligations under finance leases
— due more than one year
Government grants

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

REERRBAE
FRBEE

RITHER
—REMEFREIH
BMEMEER
—REFREIH
B B

BEFE
BXREE
A

HER

2015 2014

—ZE—RHF —ZE—pE

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET T

(restated)

(#eE5)

616,324 689,483

23 3,027 -
24 4,005 3,381
26 32,854 33,871
39,886 37,252

576,438 652,231

27 2,000 2,000
574,438 650,231

576,438 652,231

The consolidated financial statements on page 57 to 150 were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Yiu Chi To

BB L&
Director

EF

F57E 150 B MR A B IRERBER2016F3 A24

AREFSIERTETIE  Wh IR

2

Mr. Chen Chung Po
PREEFE o4
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H31 8 [HFE

Share Share  Statutory  Translation Merger  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE RDEE AERKE EXRE A6REE  RENE &t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ter TEx  TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn

(Note a) (Note b)
(FiEa) (Miztb)
At 1 January 2014 120141 A1H 101 134,999 33,503 24870 34,561 192419 420453
Profit for the year FRHNE - - - - - 61,193 61,193
Other comprehensive income EEEMPERE
for the year
- exchange differences arising from ~ —JEINETREEEH
foreign operations B =% - - - 364 - - 364
Total comprehensive income FEEANGER
for the year - - - 364 - 61,193 61,557
Group reorganisation (Note 27¢) SESEA(MTE27C) (100) - - - - - (100)
Issue of new shares (Note 27d) BATHAR (D (M7E27d) 500 183,500 - - - - 184000
Share issue expenses BT Y - (13679) - - - - (13679
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note 27¢) B3 40& At 217 (HizE27e) 1,499 (1,499) - - - - -
Transfer i - - 6,239 - - (6239) -

At 31 December 2014 120148128318 2,000 303,321 39,742 25234 34,561 247373 652,231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mERERBER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

Share Share Statutory Translation Merger  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE  RHEE ZERE ERRE SHRE KBNS G
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TiEx TET TET FEx TET
(Notea) (Note b)
GED) GiED)
At1 January 2015 R015E1 A18 2,000 303321 39742 25234 34561 247,373 652,231
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (38767) (38,767
Other comprehensive expense EEEMPEAY
for the year
- exchange differences arising —BIRBELN
from foreign operations B =% - - - (33,026) - - (33,0206)
Total comprehensive expense FEXARYLHE
for the year - - - (33,026) - (38,767)  (71,793)
Interim dividend declared and paid ~~ EiR R TS - (4000 - - - - (4,000
Transfer Lob - - 2,925 - - (2,925) -
At 31 December 2015 R2015F128318 2,000 299,321 42,667 (7,792) 34,561 205,681 576,438
Notes: Fi5E
(@) As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the @ HEARKEFMB(HEI])ERREARR RN BEK

IR EBNRBRRARBETESTRAISERE
E(REHBEFEERR) SIBERBEFE10%
REERE - BERBESRETMEAS0% - i
SULRHRBAR D IR E TS A ARIEL -

Company'’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity

owners.

B HHRIEATIER A B R AN AR B K A B A
RAHE R A R EENER ©

(b)  Merger reserve represented the difference between share capital of the new holding (b)
company and the aggregate of the share capital of the then holding company of
the Group and the companies comprising the Group.

HE2013F12A31BIEFE - BB LEMRIEARN—

During the year ended 31 December 2013, as part of the pre-listing reorganisation,

the Company issued 135 ordinary shares of HK$1,000,000 each which, through its
subsidiaries, were used to subscribe for new shares issued and allotted by Wai Chi
Group (HK) Limited (“Wai Chi Group”) and became the holding company of the
Group. The difference between the proceed from the issuance of shares and the
then share capital and capital reserve subscribed was recognised in the merger

reserve.

HH - ARRBBENE R BT 13RTREE
1,000000/8 TR LB - AERBRESEEER
AR([BEREE )BT REZEOIRG - WHAE
SEMIERAR - BITRMASZIEEE RENE
AR R B AR B Z RN & SRR TR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H31 8 [HFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect
of other receivables
Government grants
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
construction in progress
Write-down of inventories
Allowance for inventories
Reversal of allowance for inventories

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables

Increase in bills receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade payables

Increase in bills payables

(Decrease) increase in other payables

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REED

BRE AT (&R ) FIE

HBIATEIA

BTSRAR

FEWA

W - BERRETE
B W R R % B At FE MR
R AR EEIRED
2GS

TR E IR 8
HEWE - ME K&K
B
MR - BE MR

oA B LA B A5 e L At P Wk TR

REVREE R

SAAERE TR RERRHOIRE
BB

WoRFE

FERE

TFEEFERD

HERESRBALERS
e

FEEM

FEM R SRR A (16 0n)
A ESES

H A Wk T (485 0 ) s >
FETRRFR OB ) 3B 1
NS Sl

A 8 < 2R E R A ) #2 n

RETHFELERSE
ENFREARAER

REFHELERSFH

2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
(restated)

(FeE5))

(37,661) 81,588
30,534 29,672
(4,930) (1,520)
47,746 42327
(249) =
(2,952) (3,877)
958 971

243 181

118 =
21,319 413
14,164 -
41,830 —
- 891

(407) -
110,713 150,646
(63,632) (4,268)
165,213 (150,579)
(113,645) (38,099)
(11,615) 3,765
(38,707) 36,720
160,255 21,789
(1,219) 6,310
207,363 26,284
(12,985) (14,411)
194,378 11,873
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

REREREBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placements of pledged bank deposits
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Placements of time deposits
(Advances to) repayments from related companies
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised
Government grants received
Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Dividend paid

Interest paid

Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment to a director
Repayment to a related company
Repurchase of shares

Proceeds from issue of shares
Share issue expenses

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF 31 DECEMBER,
represented by bank balances and cash

REEH
R EIPRITER
FABEMRITER
BEVZE BELERE
F AEHIFR
(RIRE R R R BERRER
BEUFE
HEME - BEN&E
P S 5R

REEBMAREFR
BMEES
FTIBIRITIEK
BT
BEREMEEER
EfE

ERFE
ERIRITIER
BRT—REF
BT —HERT]
(ol 8 B 17
BITRRAD PR 1S FOR
BITRMFAX

BMEEZH(FTRA)RERS
R

RERREEEWORD)
1B nFEE

MATBNRERBESEEY
PR F &
M2A31MENRER

REEEY  8FRT
BHRERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

2015 2014
—E-HF —F—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
(restated)

(FeE5))

326,509 84,032
(506,218) (76,764)
(56,504) (58,323)
(31,225) -

(477) 41
4,930 1,520
8,237 370
(254,748) (49,124)
604,591 534,738
3,953 4022
(2,699) (760)
(4,000) =
(30,534) (29,672)
(590,103) (409,858)
- (1,458)
- (516)
- (100)

- 184,000
- (13,679)
(18,792) 266,717
(79,162) 229,466
331,864 100,777

(12,689) 1,621
240,013 331,864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H31 8 [HFE

1. GENERAL 1. —REHR

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited is a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 16 August 2013
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Yiu Chi To. The address of the
registered office of the Company is Offshore Incorporations (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of
the Company is 6th Floor, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") while
that of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") are Renminbi (“RMB"). For the purpose of presenting the
financial statements, the Company and its subsidiaries adopted HKS as
its presentation currency which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

BEZERBERDEN2013F8A 16 BIRE
FENSAFAERSHEEMKLA
EHREBRAR - mEBMDR2014F11 A
BEEBTABBMERIMERAA ([BX
FrDERET « EREERD RER L
A o NN A EE B R 2 Hb Uk & Offshore
Incorporations (Cayman) Limited, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman lslands * 2~
ARTRERMHB AT ENREREHERS
635 MM EOHE ©

ARREBREREER - KB AR 2
T EEBEIINEE34

AR R i 78 M B SL Y B 2 B 2 Th e
gELET((BR])  MRHPEARKM
BE([HEDKIMBRRZNEEESA
RE(TAR®] - BREHNMBHREAME -
ARAREMBARRMETAEZIE
% EARBZINEEERAAR -



Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&EIERERAF ANNUAL REPORT 2015 £F %

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nv_\é,ﬁ\jﬁiﬁg% Bﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EA

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRs, Hong Kong Accounting

Standards ("HKAS(s)"), amendments and interpretations (“Int(s)"),

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

"HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’ which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair
value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

AREF - NEBRAA T MEERTER
AUHHREER  HREETBGTMAE
((BEREMAE DEMNET BN BRE
R FEGFER(FRBEER]) -
CHEEI 2 K

BEEP RS BB BRELEN20106F
B2 ER] BNNFBHCFE
Bgi3
B BEwE BRMBIMELER20114F
RRZEFT E0IFEHFE
Bgid
ARG FRERMTE - BEHK
F195E 2 EFT

BR TICPRAtsN - MAFEERFE] REE
AIERUBHRELENHAKERAFER
BEFENRBRARMAR,LEHFIR
HZEGBVBRROBBEL BENEAF
2 .

EAMKEREZER2010F £2012
FRAFEEBE

BB IERE R 2010FEF2012FFE >
FEMWERES THEBYEMELEN 2%
BIER]A - BT -

BB RS LR E 2 2T () E K[ 57
BRI MBIEE]IZEE 0 RMMA
[RBGGEIRIRBIEEIZEE ST
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EREAUBHREERN([FB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar
economic characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in @ manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity
is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts
incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity
for the provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company consider that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle has had no material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply
to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in
the consolidated financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39
or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 are
not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be
required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must
determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company consider that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle has had no material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year. As a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF

2. ERBERUBREEA(TER
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HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Annual improvement to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting from Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations!
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L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
E Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. In
2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in the consolidated financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued
in previous years with limited amendments to the classification
and measurement by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI") measurement category for
certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces
an “expected credit loss” model for impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
orloss.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

(continued)

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF

2. BEEBHBHEEDN(EB
MEHERL )R EBDD
5451 (40)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires
that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s expected
credit losses on its financial assets and commitments to extend
credit were added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted for. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition
and, consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and non-
financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9
(2014) looks at whether a risk component can be identified and
measured and does not distinguish between financial items and
non-financial items. The new model also enables an entity to use
information produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to
exhibit eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS
39 using metrics that are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation compared
with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken only for
accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have significant impact on amounts reported
in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
i)  Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
iii) Determine the transaction price;

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the consolidated
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EREAUBHREERN([FB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS
15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one of the
disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal through
distribution to owners) to the other should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the
requirements in HKFRS 5. Besides, the amendments also clarify
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement
against the guidance for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in order
to assess whether the additional disclosures for any continuing
involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety
are required. Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that
disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report,
unless the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EREAUBHREERN([FB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which
the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the
obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be
used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes to the
interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere in the interim
financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify that the required
interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements
or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim financial
report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim
financial statements and at the same time. If users do not have access
to the other information in this manner, then the interim financial

report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under HKAS
16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods for intangible
assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only in the

following limited circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue;

i) when a high correlation between revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible assets could be
demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should
be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
will have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where
and in what order information is presented in the consolidated
financial statements. Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into
consideration all relevant facts and circumstances, how it aggregates
information in the consolidated financial statements, which include
the notes. An entity does not require to provide a specific disclosure
required by a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific

requirements or describe them as minimum requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) AND
NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (continued)
Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements for
presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when their
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial
position and financial performance respectively. Entities, in which
they have investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method, separated into
the share of items that (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (i) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the understandability and
comparability of its financial statements when determining the
order of the notes; and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be disclosed in
one note, but instead can be included with related information in
other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier

application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material impact on
the disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns. When
the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee,
power over the investee may be obtained through: (i) a contractual
arrangement with other vote holders; (ii) rights arising from other
contractual arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on all relevant
facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of these
elements of control stated above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivables for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FTESTBEKR(E)

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group's policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as prepaid lease payment in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading

of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect
of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liabilities for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress as described below are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined above.

Investment in a subsidiary
Investment in a subsidiary is stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a related company, pledged bank deposits, deposits
with bank and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade, bills and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period of 30 to 180 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade, bills and other receivables and amount due from a related
company, where the carrying amounts are reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade,
bills and other receivables or amount due from a related company
are considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly an equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s

own equity instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBER(E)

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value of
inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment for the
purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group
categorised the fair value measurements into three levels, based on
the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 -  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by

reviewing their respective fair value measurement.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4, BT ERZ 2T ERIR

(continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain deductible temporary
differences. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits. Further
details of which are disclosed in note 25.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful
lives involves management's estimation. The Group assesses annually
the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed
in the future period. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying values of
property, plant and equipment of the Group were approximately
HK$285,415,000 (2014: approximately HK$312,335,000), net of
accumulated depreciation of approximately HK$194,260,000 (2014:
approximately HK$159,717,000).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines whether the property, plant and equipment are
impaired whenever there is indication of impairment presented. The
impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are recognised for
the amounts by which the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable
amounts, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates such as future revenue
and discount rates. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying values of
property, plant and equipment of the Group were approximately
HK$285,415,000 (2014: approximately HK$312,335,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$13,583,000 (2014:
Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4, BT ERZ 2T ERIR

(continued)

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance for inventories
based on the assessment of the net realisable value. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amount of inventories of the Group was
approximately HK$222,385,000 (2014: approximately HK$201,120,000),
net of accumulated allowances for inventories of approximately
HK$50,344,000 (2014: approximately HK$10,637,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and
adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the customer's
current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review of their current
credit information. The Group continuously monitors collections and
payments from its customers and maintains a provision for estimated
credit losses based upon its historical experience. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group's expectations and the Group will
continue to monitor the collections from customers and maintain
an appropriate level of estimated credit losses. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables of the
Group were approximately HK$369,961,000 (2014: approximately
HK$551,697,000), net of accumulated allowances of impairment losses
of trade and other receivables of approximately HK$25,794,000 (2014:
approximately HK$8,234,000).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax liabilities based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of income tax payables was approximately
HKS$10,414,000 (2014: approximately HK$17,141,000).
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consist of net debt (which includes
bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases, net of pledged
bank deposits, deposits with bank and bank balances and cash) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, issuance of new shares as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

EXEBRER

AEBEZERNEEEEEARAKEARE
EROAFKELE  RSEBEEBR
Rmists  RERBRRTREALE - &
SE EERIEETFHLRTTE

AEENEARBHESFE(BRERT
a5 - MEHEEE  MESEMRTE
K RITERRBITERIRE) - UEA
NAHE AREEER (BEREBETRA R
A

ARREEEHRAEANER  EF IR
ERERNRAREZHEARRR 2 AR -
AEEFERRMBE - BITHR - UK
BITHEIEEBERATFOERBELRE
e

BETH
(a) BT EMNSE

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables

(including bank balances and cash)

TREE

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

B K FE R IR
(BRBITEBRLIES)

2015 2014
—E-FF —ZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
1,072,065 1,033,030
1,015,742 893,554
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due
from a related company, pledged bank deposits, deposits with
bank, bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, obligations under finance leases and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. During the year ended
31 December 2015, approximately 7% (2014: approximately 119%)
of the Group's sales are denominated in United States dollars
("US$”) and approximately 28% (2014: approximately 52%) and 1%
(2014: Nil) of total cost of sales are denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY") respectively which is
different from the functional currencies of the group entities
carrying out the transactions.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF

6. BT A (&)
(b) AR EE BB RBE

AEENETZEV BT EBERIERN
REE - e MEMRKIR - B
—HBEELRRE BEEFRTRE
;o SRITER  ROTEHRLRES &
MERERE - HMEMFRARER
ER mMEHEEREIRITER %
FemMTAENFBRBEM TR
B-EAzZTeRITABENERBRE
migRR(EERREMERER) - 5
ERBRRBEESER o REZEFR
BEBRREN T - EEEEERE
K2 TR - ARER KR &R
HUEE R -
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E¥E

AEEFINSHERKEE S48 5H
EHINER B o B Z=2015F 1231 H
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Also, certain trade, bills and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, trade, bill and other payables and bank borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USS, HKS, JPY and other currencies which
are currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets

BE

2015
—E—fF
HK$'000

FET
RMB AR 32,241
uss =Iv 63,015
HKS BIT 5,329
JPY =] -
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Bii% T B (&)

(b) A EREE B R RBER (&)
45 AL ()
HEER (B
Boh - BT EKER - R R

1l FEUSR IR A B3R & ISR TT B8R IA %
FERRRAR ~ BN R S ELA R A 00R
ARBITERAARYE - XT - 8
7T BEIRMEEEEEREEE N
S B EHEHIE - AERER HEH
RUSNEHEEREEREBREZ
FREEWNT

Liabilities

afF

2014 2015 2014
=t Lk T P4

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FTHET FHET
42,910 - -
100,268 114,708 79,874
63,213 915 2,220
= 5,686 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the related foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

AEBRE L EINEHPBEE - R
M- ARREEHEEERMINEE
SRR WHNEEREEHHREKR
SN
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6. BT A(H)
(b) B4 35 AR 72 B AR R BUR (1)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, USS$, HKS and JPY

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
or decrease in the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2014: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an decrease/increase in post-tax loss/profit where
the respective functional currencies strengthen 5% (2014: 5%)
against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of
the respective functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss/profit and other equity and the balances below would be
negative.

5 Ek ()

B (&)
AEETEMHARY XL BT
K AR EERE

TRANASEEHREEERBNIEE
B AR R INEE | T Bk T Bk 500 A SRR
[ o 5%(2014%F : 5%) BAPREEZE
B A B R ONE RS P E A R SR L
K RREBEHINEERSIEA] 4L
SR T - RESMERITE KR
BREWAINESERNEREITER - W5t
ERF MmN SRERAR I LE
TEHFAR - TXAYIMESRE RS
B 88 & 1 H AR B SN AHE 5% (2014
F 1 5%)RBRFLREEFURRL 15
e WS B E B L IEMINERZE
5%(20144F = 5%) + #H¥E5EFE K
HihER BN EEENERTE -
mATRIBSRBEE -

HEEER MBEYE

Impact on loss/profit for the year

RMB AR
uss ETT
HKS ETT
JPY S|

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZT—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
(1,346) (1,791)
2,211 611)
(166) (2,287)

237 -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure on bank balances
and deposits with bank denominated in RMB at the end of

the reporting period.

(i) This is mainly attributable to exposure on bank balances,
pledge bank deposits, trade, bills and other receivables,
trade, bills and other payables and bank borrowings
denominated in USS at the end of the reporting period.

(i) This is mainly attributable to exposure on bank balances,
trade, bills and other receivables and trade, bills and other
payables denominated in HKS at the end of the reporting

period.

(iv) This is mainly attributable to exposure on trade, bills and
other payables denominated in JPY at the end of the

reporting period.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, outstanding trade, bills and other
receivables, trade, bills and other payables and bank borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting

period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. BT A (&)

(b) B EREEBERIEEKE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 23) and obligations under
finance leases (see Note 24). The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary

action when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank and
bank balances (see Note 20) and variable rate bank borrowings
(see Note 23). However, the exposure in bank balances is minimal
to the Group as the bank balances are all short-term in nature.
It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of

interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end
of reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2014: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$271,000 (2014:
post-tax profit decrease/increase by approximately HK$220,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6. I TH(E)
(b) BIEEREEEERBEK(E)

policies (continued)

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 6% (2014: 21%) of
the total trade and bills receivables at 31 December 2015 was due
from the Group's largest customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 17% (2014: 37%) of
the total trade and bills receivables at 31 December 2015 was due
from the Group’'s five largest customers.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 93% (2014: 87%) of the
total trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2015.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6. MBI A (&)
(b) BRI EE B FERBUR (&)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has available
unutilised trade financing and bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$701,912,000 (2014: approximately HKS$414,887,000). Details of
which are set out in note 23.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivatives financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

RBETER

REERBECARME @ AREE
EREREEERSEABRNASKE
X RERRSFBWKFE ARk
MERSRERPOTE - EEEE
ZIRTTERNERBR - A RERE
SPE R o

AEBKBRITEREARDESH
FERIR o R2015F 128318 * A&
EHARNBARDAMNE SRE RIRTT
B 2R E #9701,912,0007 7T (20144 -
#9414,887,0007 7T ) © B BB BEH KT
23 ¢

TRAVNAREGITESRABZH
BANH - TRORESRAGNK
MRBSRERE - WIRAEE AL
ANZORFAPLIE - LEE &
BAREBREE R ZBITERTIE
ABZRFRER - MARRITRE AR
BEBITERS 2ER - R FITES
BRABZAMADWIIREERTE ZE
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st

interest rate curve at the end of each reporting period. Ho
As at 31 December 2015

RZ2-5F+-A=1-H
More than
2years but
less than
5years
B2
BAHR5E
HK$'000
TR

More than
1 year but
less than
2years
BiA1E
BHR2E
HK$'000
FET

Total

Over undiscounted
5years cash flows
KERRE
RAH
HK$'000
TET

On demand
or within
1year
Ak
HK$'000
TET

Carrying
amount

BB5E
HK$'000
T#x

RE{E
HK$'000
TER

Trade, bills and other payables ~ FEfERF » ZE K

H i ERFUE 658,801 - - - 658,801 658,801

Bank borrowings RITER 353,828 450 2,091 854 357,223 348,746
Obligations under finance leases Bt &R E1E1E 4,573 3,042 1,087 - 8,702 8,195
1,017,202 3,492 3,178 854 1,024,726 1,015,742




104

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&EIERERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12318 (L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

6. I TH(E)
(b) BIEEREEEERBEK(E)

RBESRE (&)

As at 31 December 2014

R-Z-NF+—A=+—H
More than More than

On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

FEEX Bl F BiEFE  AMRAE
FFER  BLREFE BLRSEF ik REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TAT TET TAT

Trade, bills and other payables ERED  ZER

it TE 539,400 - - 539400 539,400
Bank borrowings RITER 380431 - - 380431 348521
Obligations under finance leases B ETAEREE 2,531 2,531 998 6,060 5633
922,362 2,531 998 925,891 893,554

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2015, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings
were approximately HK$20,681,000 (2014: approximately
HK$23,074,000). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that these bank borrowings will be repaid more than
one year but not exceeding five years after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will be approximately HK$21,474,000 (2014:
approximately HK$24,441,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of each reporting period.

REEERERIGERZBITETR L
B EAE S ATET Al EZE RS F A ]
RIEF R4 RN - 2015512 8318 - Ik
ZERTERNDRUBASEBRL
20,681,000 7T (2014 4F : %923,074,000
BIT) o KERASBER M B RIE -
RABIEFW I EERITAIBEAEITHE
HE SR ERAFER - ARARESR
HEEZEFRTEFEREBEHRE KT
ENTEEENEH  RWERE—F
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Fair value
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of current financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values
due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of the other non-current financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 7.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes. Analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and other
gains is as follows:

Bii% T B (&)
(b) B4 35 AR 72 B AR R BUR (1)

>

RE
ARBEZRE  ARERE MR
RABER AR BERN R EARZ R
PepEEReRABEEE BN
RHREE  fEREEEEAAE
A -

ARBEZRE  EFEMBHRRIA
BRI ERAEAARZ E M IF
RBTRAELRAEREEQAEMN

++

Eo

LR H AR H s

BEBRE-REKBETLEERNCK
Ko FEMGRIR (FIRR T30 K S E AR RATR IR o
AEEHERE - R ARE Y ED
T

Revenue e
Sales of goods HESm

Other income and other gains Hi A & E ks
Bank interest income RITHEWA
Government grants (Note) BB (BIRE)
Reversal of allowance on inventories GFERERD
Reversal of impairment loss recognised E e IR RIE

in respect of other receivables E R

Sales of scrapped materials SHERER
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Yz SR8
Sundry income HIBUA

2015 2014
—E-EF —EF—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FiBT
1,100,491 1,165,579
4,930 1,520
2,952 3,877

407 -

249 -

27 383

- 380

2,223 679

10,788 6,839
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

7.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS
(continued)

Note:

Included in the amount of government grants recognised during each of the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 of approximately HK$2,775,000 and
HK$3,170,000 respectively were received from the PRC government in respect of
certain research projects and export encourage scheme, the relevant granting
criteria for which have been fulfilled and were immediately recognised as other
income for the years. For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, amount of
approximately HK$177,000 and HK$707,000 were government grants recognised as
deferred income utilised during the years respectively. (See note 26)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. In addition,
for both Light-Emitting Diode (“LED") backlight and LED lighting
operations, the information reported to the chief operating decision
maker is further broken down into different type of products and
application of products. The directors of the Company have chosen
to organise the Group around differences in products. No operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:
1. LED backlight - Manufacture and trading of LED backlight
products in different sizes and applications

2. LED lighting - Manufacture and trading of LED lighting

products for public and commercial use

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

XA HWAREMKRS
(&)
GEX

HE2015F K2014F12 A31 B L FE R FHRBHIK
FE i Bh 5 Bl 49 42,775,000 7T K& 3,170,000 7T + &2
FEphE THZEIE B K@ O 5H8] RIERK BB
8T & EBTRERFIE - BERNERAFE
A o B Z=2015F K2014F12831H IEFE -
R4 B 5 B 49 5177,0007 7T K2 707,000/ 7T E. FERR.
BFENBEBBRAETEHRA - (BHizE26)

D EHER
AARATRAH(EBLEREA)L

HOER - ERDEMFFEDRREM
%EE’%&H&&@ETD R e E

o tEAI - BE N —1REE([LED]) & Y R LED
iR E R

1

ﬁﬁﬂ%i‘%ﬁi% L/?&ﬁ/\
E—TRERD R TRBHNLERITE -
ARREFE T?LATHFDEME%UZKZZ%FZK

EEMNEE *“*WEIE’JT ®HE

B BiEE BEREAD HBIA

BoER o

BEmE  AEBREEBITIEHREEL

FeERE| DA 2IREFE S IBAT

1.LEDE ¥ ERBETRAN
K & 5 A HILED A
EDD

2.LEDERFH — sENBEEREAL
K B 3 iR HILEDER AR

En
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEER (&)
Segment revenues and results o ERUk = I 3 4R
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by AREER 2REED LR E REEDIT
reportable and operating segments. R e
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12831HILFE
LED backlight LED lighting Total
LEDE 3 LEDRHA Gl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
REVENUE £ 3
External sales HNEREH &S 1,033,652 66,839 1,100,491
Segment profit (loss) DEBFE(EE) 97,268 (1,825) 95,443
Unallocated income RAOBCUWA 7,153
Unallocated expenses AOECFHX (109,723)
Finance costs BF TR AR (30,534)
Loss before tax M TR0 EtE (37,661)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ2014F12A31BLLEE
LED backlight LED lighting Total
LEDE % LEDHREA =L
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FATT FATT
REVENUE £ 3
External sales HNEREH & 1,070,946 94,633 1,165,579
Segment profit 7 EBHE 189,534 12,586 202,120
Unallocated income RO EUA 3,490
Unallocated expenses RoBEF (94,350)
Finance costs B TSR AR (29672)

Profit before tax CAEIRAINE 81,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit/

loss represents the profit/loss earned by each segment without

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

8. ZEPER (&)

N

7 P K R AE ()

BED NS BREAN M AREE
AR B - D EE N, BRI R D B

Bzmh, e

TEEPRITHER

allocation of central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
investment income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

EEHE  REWARMBRAZDE °
ERMATBRAHMBREERERDELE
A RE

THEERER
AEEASREESBOEERBEDN

reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets

W -

LED backlight LEDE 5

LED lighting LEDARAA

Total segment assets HEEERTE
Unallocated assets ROBLEE

Consolidated total assets

A BERR

AHEE
2015 2014
= i L
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TAT
890,146 948,263
211,613 234410
1,101,759 1182673
546,745 426,252
1,648,504 1,608,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) THEEREE(E)
Segment liabilities PEHEE

2015 2014
—Z2-1F —TmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FATT
LED backlight LEDE ¥ 618,115 501,242
LED lighting LEDE@RA 86,161 78,754
Total segment liabilities HEBEETE 704,276 579,996
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 367,790 376,698
Consolidated total liabilities ReBERE 1,072,066 956,694

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating MERSHRBARSESHHEERNE

resources between segments:

— allassets are allocated to operating segments other than deferred — FBEENEZEENBMIERLES
tax assets, amount due from a related company, pledged bank HEE - RIWEEARINIEA - B
deposits, deposits with bank, bank balances and cash and certain RITIEK ~ RITTEAK ~ RITEBR KR
unallocated head office assets. Assets used jointly by operating ERETARDMBIHLEE - HEED
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by HERFEAMEEZER T E2HDH
individual reportable segments; and Frigiizs e+ &

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than — FBABESEREEESBMIEEA
income tax payables, bank borrowings and obligations under B RITERRBERERE - B
finance leases. Liabilities for which operating segments are jointly LE DI HEFAENBGEZ D B

liable are allocated in proportion to segment revenue. BIEE RIS ER o
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE2015F12A831HLLFE

LED LED
backlight lighting Unallocated Total

LEDA 3¢ LEDREH R E a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T FHExT FExT T T

Amounts included in the FADBEERD
measure of segment profit EETTEZSH:
or loss or segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets ¥ RNE IERBEE 55,143 6,622 - 61,765
Amortisation of prepaid lease SEANEiEN=GE 0L

payments - 397 561 958
Depreciation of property, LE NN E

plant and equipment e 39,639 8,107 - 47,746
Impairment loss recognised LR M AR S B A

in respect of trade and other R FIBHER A

receivables REEE 16,074 5,245 - 21,319
Reversal of impairment loss hE M0 FE USRI fERR

recognised in respect of B REE 1B D

other receivables (249) - - (249)
Reversal of allowance for FERERED

inventories - (407) - (407)
Write-down of inventories WoRF & 37,831 3,999 - 41,830

Amounts regularly provided to EHi B {THEARIZH
the Chief Executive Officer but {ERst A9 ZpiE%
not included in the measure R PEETEN

of segment profit or loss or &

segment assets:

Interest income FlEUW A - - (4,930) (4,930)
Finance costs BATER AR - - 30,534 30,534
Income tax expense FriSif > 1,122 (16) - 1,106

#  Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. t ERBEETREREEHIEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12318 (L FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

8. 7 ERER (&)

HZE2014512831HLLFEE

LED LED
backlight lighting  Unallocated Total
LEDE % LEDHREA A CEl
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T FATT FATT FATT
Amounts included in the A D EBE R 5 &R
measure of segment profit EETEZSHE
or loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets ¥ IRNEIERENEE! 24,108 39,452 153 63,713
Amortisation of prepaid lease TafTHERIA S
payments - 402 569 971
Depreciation of property, Y% - B REETE
plant and equipment 37,863 4,464 - 42327
Impairment loss recognised in L HE R R I B At
respect of trade and other R FIBHER A
receivables BB E R 413 _ _ 413
Impairment loss on inventories GFEREEE 869 22 - 891
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HE NKE
plant and equipment B8 F 5 181 - - 181
Amounts regularly provided to  EHA 54T B &2 14t
the Chief Executive Officerbut  {E Rt A D EpiE %
not included in the measure ROBEETEN
of segment profit or loss or 28
segment assets:
Interest income F B YA = = (1,520) (1,520)
Finance costs BTSN - - 29,672 29,672
Income tax expense TR R 18,216 2179 - 20,395

#

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

C RBDAETREETHEAE -
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Analysis by type of products

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. ZEPER (&)

LED backlight
- Small dimension
- Medium dimension

— Large dimension

Sub-total

LED lighting
— Indoor lighting
— Outdoor lighting

Sub-total

Total

LEDE 5

— /R
—F R
— KR

Nt
LEDHRRH
—ZME

— =HMNRAA

et
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REEEEMOKE
REREREDNDHT
2015 2014
—E-FF —E—gF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
831,930 869,160
97,343 48,597
104,379 153,189
1,033,652 1,070,946
26,928 60,768
39,911 33,865
66,839 94,633
1,100,491 1,165,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from major products (continued)
Analysis by application of products

8. ZEPER (&)

REETEEmMAOKEE)
BEmEREDHND T

2015 2014
= i L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FATT
LED backlight LEDE 5
— Smartphone — B RE T 598,903 560,833
— Automobile displays —EHAET 145,480 149,412
— Equipment displays —(REET 183,917 201,105
— Televisions — B 105,352 159,596
Sub-total INE 1,033,652 1,070,946
LED lighting LEDFREH
— Public lighting — N FLAREH 39,921 38,857
— Commercial lighting — 75 A BR EA 26,918 55,776
Sub-total INE 66,839 94,633
Total EEr 1,100,491 1,165,579

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC (country
of domicile). The Group's customers are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of customers as below:

3B

AEENEEEBUNEE R E(PFER
K) ARENEFPIEURNEELTH -

AEEREFHIEVES D REINEES

e EE DTN -

2015 2014

—E—HF —E—UE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FATT

The PRC i 988,282 1,043,634
Hong Kong B 63,954 95,813
Others EA 48,255 26,132
1,100,491 1,165,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)
The Group's information about its non-current assets is presented
based on location of the assets as below:

8. ZEREM (M)
o B ()
AEBREEMENEHSNIERDEE
BRI

The PRC Lol
Hong Kong BE

2015 2014
—E—FF —EF—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHTT
324,078 354,542
701 633
324,779 355,175

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Details of the customers accounting for 10% or more of aggregate

revenue of the Group are as follows:

FRBEETBEELCHAEE °

FEEFEHR
REEWZBEE 0% A EHEFFIBN
T~

2015 2014
—E-hfF —EF—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FBT

Customer A*

EPA*

384,353 250,782

*

Revenue from LED backlight.

9. FINANCE COSTS

*  REALEDE YERIULES ©

9. Bi#ERA

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT

Interest expenses on:
— bank borrowings

- finance leases

UTEBENF B :

—RITERK
—REEE

30,175 29,552
359 120

30,534 29,672
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10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRiS BB
2015 2014
—E—FF —EF—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Current income tax B HFTIS

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R B EEFTSR
— Current year —REE 9,265 18,102
— Over-provision in respect of prior years —ARFERERE (3,007) -
6,258 18,102
Deferred taxation (Note 25) EIERTE (Mi3E25) (5,152) 2,293
Total income tax expense for the year FEFSH S 2% 1,106 20,395

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
companies is 25% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC, the Group's
subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* ({7
FE OFYI) BBRAR]) and Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company
Limited* GEMEEHEFABR A A, were accredited as high-tech
enterprises. They are entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for
both years.

*  For translation purpose only

*

REFEHENRABRELZHES ([RBEK
BB DORARES - AEEHARARF
SHENRBRLESHNEAIMEH -

R AN &= B A E 220154 % 2014412 A31
B IEFE W EERBZMNEEFEFAME
REAE - WAEE L EELBTBHNEH
B -

BIEFESEMSHE([EMERE])
RIZEMBEEE GG - REBZE2015F
12A3RIEFE - RRQ AR E A25%
(20144 : 25%) °

RIBEHBEMERER AR - ARERKE
RAREABCRINER AT REMNESE
ETERARENERDHRMEE - 7T
RMREFERZEBEHEIS%

EEBERE
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10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. 5B < (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FRAGHAS BEIRE BRI TR
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as (E)FEEERMT -
follows:

2015 2014

—E—FF —EF—UF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(Loss) profit before tax e F5 A (E518) F B (37,661) 81,588

Tax at domestic income tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%)  3ZB A FTS R R 25% T E 1)

FEIE (20145 : 25%) (9,415) 20,397
Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC REREE R E (331) (5,124)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries operating  Hfth BI;EHE R & 1F K 1 B
in other jurisdictions RAEITEFRER T E 1,382 620
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR OB ET 2
tax purposes 2,454 5,303
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BAERT AR TS 52 (57) (72)
Additional tax deduction for research and R RN TR R 2
development (1,836) (2,675)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTREEBARETE 3,738 1,946
Tax effect of other temporary differences not RIERE M ERF =R
recognised M E 8,178 =
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAEFEBERE (3,007) =
Income tax expense for the year FREMAX 1,106 20,395

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 25. TREFETB A FFEIB ST AT 525 ©
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11.(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N.FE(HE) R
2015 2014
—E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at FE(FHE)FEE R
after charging (crediting): (FtA)THIBIE :
Directors’ emoluments A 5,763 4423
Salaries and allowances e FoRAL
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TEEESIE) 238,568 204,739
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE B K
(excluding directors) (TBHEES) 16,478 13,779
Total staff costs BIRAMERE 260,809 222,941
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2K B 7 B 880 750
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE S A & SR IR 5 958 971
Net foreign exchange loss b i B F /R 8,898 =
Amounts of inventories recognised as expenses RERATNEFEESEE 896,809 889,736
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MEMGRIEITE 47,746 42,327
Write-down of inventories (included in other MR E (Gt AEAM
operating expenses) (Note) ) (FEE) 41,830 =
Impairment loss on inventories (included in cost GFEREEEGIAHEE
of sales) BKAR) - 891
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables P AT B R e L At FE LSRR TE Y
(included in other operating expenses) REEE (GTAH ML
F2) 21,319 413
Impairment loss on construction in progress EETIRRESE
(included in other operating expenses) (FFAH AL EFR) 14,164 =
Listing expenses Bayiliab-a - 16,927
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,  HEWZ - HE R B
net [E518 558 243 181
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEEEE - = MR 118 -
Minimum lease payments paid under operating MEZKEHERNE
lease on premises SR RIEHEEKIA 7,811 6,237
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2015, a provision of approximately MizE : BiE2015F 128318 IEFE B ER
HK$41,830,000 (2014: Nil) was made for one-off write-down of obsolete REEFETEEENRERSELE —X
inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production or saleable in BRI AT IR A 4941,830,0005 7T (20144F -

the market ) o
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12.ES - THARKREEME

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTHARMNE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2014: eight) FRPRBENREMNAERIH (2014
directors and the chief executive officer of the Group during the F8R)ESRTHBHMEST

year were as follows:

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
UEs BUFHTES
Ms. Yiu Ms. Yong
KwanYu  Mr.Chen Jian Hui
Mr.Yiu  Mr.Chen (Salesand Wei Wu (Deputy ~ Mr.Peng Mr. Au
Forthe year ended ChiTo Chung  Marketing  (Financial ~ General Jian  YeungTin  Mr.Chen Mr.Ho

31 December 2015 (Chairman) ~ Po(CEO)  Manager) Controller)  Manager) (Notei) Wah  Kwok Wang Chi Wai
HEmnt
HEELE RERGE (MERTE REEG: FEERL  ERRE  EERE
B2015512831 B LEE (IF) (TR&8) HREE) (WHER) (GAEE) (W& %% REREE AFHLE it
HK$'000  HKY'000  HKY'000  HKY'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEn Tz TExr  TExr T  TEn  TEn  FEx  TEn

Emoluments paid or recelvablein  StE SR (&Rt
respectof aperson’s senvicesasa AR A|HENER R
director,whetherof the Company ~ EH%)EX AL
or s subsidiary undertaking AR TS

Fees ER - - - - - - 240 144 144 528
Qther emoluments e
Salares and other benefits HeREMEN 2883 1,200 726 m 177 - - - - 5,169
Contribution to retrement BRINER)
benefits scheme HEIER 18 18 18 6 6 - - - - 66

2,861 1,218 744 229 183 - 240 144 144 5,763
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND NREE - THRHEIZKREEM S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTHARMNE (E)
(continued)
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTES B TES
Ms. Yong

Ms. Yiu Mr.Chen Jian Hui
Kwan Yu WeiWu (Deputy Mr. Au
Mr. Yiu Mr.Chen (Sales and (Financial General  Yeung Tin Mr.Chen Mr.Ho

Forthe year ended ChiTo ChungPo  Marketing ~ Controller) ~ Manager) Wah  KwokWang ChiWai
31 December 2014 (Chairman) (CEO) Manager) (Note i) (Note i) (Note i) (Note il (Note i) Total
EEnt RENEE ERERt  BBAE
fEBEE REEEE (RERTS (WHEE) (BagE) kE RERRE MSEEE
HENUEDANBILER (FR) (o)  weEem) () O (&) (i) (W) At

(restated)  (restated) (restated)  (restated)  (restated)

(m=5)  (mE3) (MER)  (ME5)  (BE)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TAL AL TH71 TAL AL AL TH1 TAL AL

Emoluments paid orreceivable  HLE SR (Ewit
in respect of aperson's senvices  AAFIFEMBAT
asadirector, whetherofthe 2 ZH)BXFAAL
Company or ts subsidiary FFATENRME

undertaking
Fees i = = - = - 2 17 17 63
Other emoluments Eidie
Salares and other benefits e RA RN 223 1040 636 m 168 - - - 4300
Contribution to retirement RIEF
benefts scheme TR 17 17 17 4 5 - - - 60
2250 1,057 653 27 173 29 17 17 4473
Note i: Appointed on 25 November 2015 B © RR2015F 11 A2SHEZRE
Note ii: Appointed on 11 March 2014 Bk R201493 811 BERE
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments RELE2015F K 2014512 A31 B IEF
paid by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2015 E HMEEEHREXRERELEEH
and 2014, SR ER BN o
Mr. Chen Chung Po is also the chief executive officer of the PREBFESCEMBANARITHRAER - &
Company and the emoluments disclosed above include those for NIRBEHN M EE B EEEETERE
services rendered by him as the chief executive. TR AR TE I B & o
There were no performance related incentive payments to the RELZE2015%F & 2014F 12 831 H IEF
directors and chief executive officer during the years ended 31 B UEXNERREHESTES

December 2015 and 2014, RATERAREL ©
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND NREE - THRHEIZKREEM S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2014: three) were directors or chief executive officer of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. The
emoluments of these directors are included in the disclosures in
note 12(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2014:
two) individuals for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

were as follows:

(&)

(b) EEME
HZE2015F K2014F 12831 B IEF
B AEBRAEESHEALTFR =
Z(20145F : =R) RAREIEFHIT
BRE - ZFEEZMHE 2R XM
F120)HE - B E20159F K 20145F12
AINBIEEEHRTRA (20145 : M

Salaries and other allowances Fre R HE A ER,
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRABFIFT B 5K

Z)ANTHBET
2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FiBT
1,218 781
28 28
1,246 809

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ZEATHBMENF TIHIEE -

2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—UF
No. of No. of
employees employees

EEE BEHAE

Not more than HK$ 1,000,000 T2 1,000,00058 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z=2015%12H318 ItFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND NREE - THRHEIZKREEM S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEME (&)
There were no performance related incentive payments during REZE2015F & 2014F12 831 H IEF
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. - W MERIREDE RS -
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid KRB E2015F k201412318 IEF
individuals and any of the directors and chief executives officer B AEBEYERAEZESFTATR
as an incentive payment to join or upon joining the Group, or FMESRITRERZAME  1EA
as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 AN AR £ E 5k 10 A N £ B R A9 25 B Bk
December 2015 and 2014 BERLAHIE o

13.DIVIDENDS 13.R 8

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year S ARER &0 & Z IS

2015 Interim — HK2 cents (2014: Nil) per share 20155 /R Bl — & AR 21
(2014%F : %) 4,000 -
No dividend has been proposed since the end of the reporting period B3RS BRERERRZ IR E (2014 ¢
(2014: Nil). &)
14.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.8 R (EH8)2F

2015 2014
—B-HF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic earnings EETESREANER A%

per share < (E518) &7 (38,767) 61,193
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the years ended HZE2015F %2014 12 A31HIEFEFR
31 December 2015 and 2014 is based on the (loss) profit for the year BERBRDIZARNEEE ANEEFE (&
attributable to the owners of the Company and the weighted average 1B) FE A R # ZE2015F K% 2014412 A 31
number of ordinary shares amounted to 200,000,000 and 156,027,397 HIEFEMNEFTERRMNETHES R
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 200,000,0008% } 156,027,397 T E B » &
respectively after taking into account the capitalisation issue pursuant REET K& ETATEA K& W k27 sk A B m
to the Reorganisation prior to listing and share subscription as stated RIBPTEITH B RN EAT -
in note 27.

The dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share BB Z2015F N2014F 12431 BILFE
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during AN A B 21T BB RS R ) E AR

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. WEREERNEGRERBFER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.9% - BERRE

Plantand Motor Office Leasehold Construction
machinery vehicles  equipment improvements Buildings in progress Total
BER#E RE ROERG HEMERE BF  HBIE fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
THL T ThIL AL TAL TAL THL
cosT A&
At 1 January 2014 R014F1 B1H 27811 4297 13940 14198 136,203 14310 410759
Additions HE 54062 1281 3,034 446 - 890 63,713
Transfer fiE = = - 71 - (7121) -
Disposals hrf (876) (104) (176) - - - (1,156)
Exchange realignment B A% (539 1) (34) (179) (456) (54) (1,264
At31 December 2014 and 0145128318 R
1 January 2015 0151 A18 280459 5470 16964 18987 135747 14425 472052
Additions FE 50460 2603 2652 1216 - 4804 61,765
Transfer e 01 - - 4633 - (4824) -
Disposals/write-off HE /s (9311) - (426) - - - 9737)
Exchange realignment R AR (16989) (1,869) (1,19) (2,000) (7.926) (84) (30822)
At 31 December 2015 R015F12A31H 304,820 6,214 17,99 22,826 127,821 13,583 493,258
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ BiiTERFERE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2014 #0141 418 93,739 1824 8483 6,779 7390 - 118215
Provided for the year EFaR 35,09 1052 2344 1,19 2641 - 437
Eliminated on disposals HERE (390) (64) (151) = - - (605)
Exchange realignment B A% (167 ) (19 (17) (15) - (220
At 31 December 2014 and R014E12831 B R
1 January 2015 151818 128278 2810 10657 7956 10016 - 159717
Provided for the year FRATHR 38,116 1646 2650 2637 2697 - 47746
Impaiment loss recognised REERRIRESE
in profit or loss - - - - - 14,164 14164
Eliminated on disposals/write-off ~ HEE 48 /Hi3H (731) - (408) - - - (1,139)
Exchange realignment B A% 9251) (701) (714) (703) (695) (581) (12649)
At31 December 2015 0155128318 156,412 3,755 12,185 9,890 12,018 13,583 207,843
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 R015% 128318 148,408 2,459 5,809 12,936 115,803 - 285,415
At 31 December 2014 R014E12831H 152,181 2660 6,307 11031 125731 14425 31233
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 A318 (L FE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10% — 25%

Motor vehicles 10% - 33%

Office equipment 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements 5% - 25%

Buildings Over the shorter of term of the lease
or 2.5%

As at 31 December 2015, buildings with carrying values of
approximately HK$115,803,000 (2014: approximately HK$125,731,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

During the year, the directors of the Company conducted a review
of the Group's construction in progress and determined that assets
were impaired, due to the construction plan has been suspended
indefinitely. Accordingly, fully impairment losses of approximately
HKS$ 14,164,000 have been recognised in respect of the affected
construction in progress.

As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of plant and machinery of
approximately HK$148,408,000 (2014: approximately HK$152,181,000)
includes an amount of approximately HK$11,233,000 (2014:
approximately HK$6,092,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of motor vehicles of
approximately HK$2,459,000 (2014: approximately HKS$2,660,000)
includes an amount of approximately HK$461,000 (2014:
approximately HK$455,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF 1 23

15.9% - BEKRE (&)

L - BRE R R A NE BRI T
B4 AR

R K i 10%-25%

yE 109%-33%

WRERME 10%-20%

HEMHEEE 5%-25%

B¥ S FHsk2.5%
(ABIE & A%E)

MR2015F12ANEBEEHEREYD
115,803,0007% 7T (20144 = #9125,731,00078
TORETF - tEAR T AEERITRERK
?Eﬁ o

FRN - ARAESHAEEERIRET
EH UETEERTREFEEERPR
WEfRE - At - ERXE AR TIER
REMEREEIE4)14,164,00075 7T ©

R2015%12 8318 » BE KGRI FE
#9148408,00078 7T (20144 : #9152,181,000
BT BREREAERANEES Y
11,233,000/ 7T (20144F © #96,092,000/ 7T ) °

R2015F 128318 » AEEREFEED
2,459,000/ 7T (20144F = 492,660,000/ 7T ) &
EREHERANEESEEL461,0008
TC(20144F : 4945500078 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AN HERE
Prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land held in the PRC and ENHEFREEERATRBENHELS
are analysed for reporting purposes as follows: i BREMERBINAT -

2015 2014

—E-HF —Z—p4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

Current assets TMENE B 967 967

Non-current assets BN EE 39,364 42,840

40,331 43,807
As at 31 December 2015, leasehold land with carrying values of MR2015F 12 A3 BEEHEBED
approximately HK$22,685,000 (2014: approximately HK$24,662,000) 22,685,000/ 7T (20144F : #24,662,00078 7T )
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. MBE L ERETARERITHEAN

R -
17.INVENTORIES
17.78

2015 2014

=F-HF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Raw materials [EA 48,046 42,796

Work-in-progress EES 64,074 65,804

Finished goods SIRK G 110,265 92,520

222,385 201,120
During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was an increase REE2015F 12831 B IEEE » A] £155F
in the net realisable value following a decrease in selling expenses. EREEER ST A MmN - Bt - BEE
As a result, a reversal of allowance for inventories of approximately B 24070007870 (20144 - ) B R

HK$407,000 (2014: Nil) has been recognised and included in other FEERIW ABEREMU A & EAUZS o

income and other gains in the current year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 A318 (L FE

18.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18.EWRR K RiE

2015 2014

= —FlF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

Trade receivables U AR TR 371,831 540,637
Less: Impairment B ORE (24,600) (7,980)

347,231 532,657

Bills receivables JrE W ZE 206,399 92,754

553,630 625411
The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 to 180 days to its REE —HRAEZEFELIETHEESA
trade customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over these 302 180K o ANEBWES X F ARSI T

balances. [ @
At 31 December 2015, trade receivables with carrying amount of M2015F12 H31 HBEEHEARED
approximately HK$123,832,000 (2014: approximately HK$44,505,000) 123,832,000 7T (2014 £E : #944,505,000 7%
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. TR FEURERRR - 1EAIE FAEERITRE
IR

At 31 December 2015, bills receivables with carrying amount of R2015 F12 A3 BE EHEEEED
approximately HK$149,226,000 (2014: approximately HK$48,875,000) 149,226,000 7 7T (2014 £E : #948,875,000 7%
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. TREIRERE - (EARE TAEERITRE

A o
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The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
accumulated impairment losses presented based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective

revenue recognition dates.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

18.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

18. BRI KR R & ()

RBmERR - RERAH (RSB0
R AEEE) 25005 REHRERBEANE
WERS BRI AT AT

0to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

0Z90K
91E 180K
181E 365K
HRiE365K

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FRETT
253,711 440,920
47,772 50,495
43,361 33,276
2,387 7,966
347,231 532,657

All the bills receivables are aged within 365 days.

The movements of impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

P A FRURIE 2 BRER 1T 1365 R A ©

At 1 January

Impairment losses recognised on receivables
Written off

Exchange realignment

At 31 December

FEMERREVREZBAT ¢

2015 2014

—E-HF —Z—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

»1 AR 7,980 9,421
WG IR ER R EBE 20,074 413
HiBR (2,260) (1817)
FE 3 g (1,194) 37)
M12831H 24,600 7,980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE2015512 8318 (FF&E

18.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.ENEBRFI R E48 (48)

The Group has individually assessed all receivables and provided in
full for all receivables that are considered not recoverable. Impairment
losses of approximately HK$20,074,000 (2014: approximately
HK$413,000) were recognised during the year ended 31 December
2015.

At 31 December 2015, the aged analysis of trade receivables that was
neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired are as

follows:

AREE R EFTA EWGRIE - WREAT
B R B 0] Uk [ /Y FE U 30 T8 B AT IR
& - REZE2015512 831 B IEFERERE
SRUE 518 4 520,074,000 7T (20145« 4
413,000%7T) ©

2015512 A31 B B A RENE &
HAB I ARIRE R U BR R EREE DT LA

Neither Past due but not impaired

past due BB BN KRR E
nor Lessthan 31t060 61to90 Over90
Total impaired 30days (VS days days

It SRIE

it TEREE PR30X 31F60K 61F90K BiBIOK
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FET FTExT FTET TET FTERT  TET
At 31 December 2015 FA2015512A31H 347,231 229,072 25,636 12,584 3,650 76,289
At 31 December 2014 1R2014F12H31H 532,657 428,120 66,581 15,881 4,016 18,059

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of balances past due but not impaired as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

A 488 380 A 1 2 Rk 2 LA R R T B 48R T R
BRRSEZ TRBNEF AR

WEERE R R A] & IR BB - AR EE B R
WERANEEEREMARBEERRER
SHMNEAES - REBELR - ARE

% WEEERALESERDBHELR
A EERETTRERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

19.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 1DEMRE RERHEMERK
RECEIVABLES I
2015 2014
—E-EF —TmF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FA&T
Deposits and other receivables ’E REMEWERIA 23,924 19,294
Less: Impairment B RE (1,194) (254)
22,730 19,040
Value added tax receivables FEWBE BT 7,021 1,907
Prepayments TEf5RIE 15,071 15,377
44,822 36,324
The movements of impairment of other receivables are as follows: HAib M FIRRREZ ST
2015 2014
—E—hfF —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
At 1 January B1A1HE 254 254
Impairment losses recognised on other receivables 5t H fth fE W IBFER Y
BIEEE 1,245 =
Reversal of impairment loss recognised RIBEFERRARE
in prior years [E5 8 ol (249) -
Exchange realignment bE H % (56) =
At 31 December MR12A31H 1,194 254

The Group has individually assessed all other receivables and provided
in full for those receivables that are considered not recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEECERFHE A LM R - X
S 8 2% 1 AT Ua B B 8 LR TR S 2R TR
1 o AN B E L% F AR A (A

[}
on °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 A318 (L FE

20.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/DEPOSITS WITH 20.2EFRITIER RITEFER

BANK/BANK BALANCES AND CASH IRITERKEASE
Pledged bank deposits EIERFRITER

BRI ERIECERFRITIEART
AEBRITREEIF AT o B2015F12
H31 8B B FERL225,710,0007 7T (2014
F : 4956,715,00077T) * 1EA1FRNEIEH
RITEREEENER  ARTROES
MENEEE ©

2015812 8318 » BB ERIZEE F
BR035%%22.6%(20144F : 0.50%)5T 8. °

|ITHER
M2015F12A831H  RTERLD A
29,505,000/ 70 (20144 + &) » 12016512

AEIH - IREFIE038% (20144 « )5t
8 o

RITEBRRES
RITEREASBEASERFENRE R
REIE H A31E B s A AR R BR1T1E K ©
R2015F 12 A31 BRIRITAMBRIBZIRITM 5
FIRETE © N T0048%ZE0.057% (20144 :
0.001%Z0.5%) °

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
approximately HK$225,710,000 (2014: approximately HK$56,715,000) as
at 31 December 2015 had been pledged to secure bank borrowings
and bills falling due within one year and are therefore classified as
current assets.

The pledged deposits carried fixed interest rates from 0.35% to 2.6%
(2014:0.50%) per annum at 31 December 2015.

Deposits with bank

As at 31 December 2015, deposits with bank of approximately
HK$29,505,000 (2014: Nil), with maturity in December 2016, carry
interest rates of 0.38% (2014 Nil) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less. The bank balances at 31 December 2015 carried interest at the
prevailing market rate ranging from 0.048% to 0.057% (2014: 0.001%
t0 0.5%).

MR2015F 128318 » AEBIAARES
ERIRTT 45 88 IR £ %) 75 143,276,00078 7T
(20144 : 49205,663,00078 70 ) ° A R#E 3,
¥ BRSNS 78 38 ST R B AN BE B R A 1A R A
- EERNEERAT -

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$143,276,000 (2014: approximately
HK$205,663,000) at 31 December 2015. Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

21.AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 21. B —FERE LN RFIE

QOutstanding/ ~ Outstanding/ Amount/ Provisions/
Aggregate Aggregate Maximum Aggregate Aggregate
outstanding outstanding  amountowed  amountfallen  provisions for
amount at amountat  tothe Group duebutnot  doubtful/bad
Name of related party Loan nature 01/01/2015 31/12/2015  during the year been paid debts made
720155 20155
1RBRA  12A31BHE FNE BIEERR SRR
ER/BHx BR/ BN AEE  EEeE/ (EHER/
BEL A ERME EBELR EESHR BERLE BoR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET TAT FET FAT
LENRE(EM)ERAR Quasi-loan
8% - 477 477 - -
L Mes. Yiu Kwan Yu is the common director. 1 hEBAZ T AERES -

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ZEEAEER - 28 BEREREE -

ZN

SEYERZF LR A TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

22.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUALS

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

Trade payables (Note a)
Bills payables (Note a)

Receipt in advance (Note b)
Construction cost payables

Other payables
Accrued expenses

Value added tax payables

FEATRRR (B aEa)
ENES AR E))

FEURIA (FifaED)
JEA IIER AR

H bR
LR
FEFHRER

22 BRERA - REREMENTRE

LiERREH
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBTT
183,936 222,643
444,708 284,453
628,644 507,096
3,142 1,408
1,467 1,557
10,378 6,478
19,930 24,845
8,296 10,144
43,213 44,432
671,857 551,528

Notes:

a)  The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

090K

91E 180K
1812365K
HBiA365K

i
a) RWEER  REZAHE5MEMNSRRERER
DTER

2015 2014

—EB-HF —T—mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

126,444 176,595

44,017 32,775

9,862 6,872

3,613 6,401

183,936 222,643

The average credit period on purchase of goods is from 30 days to 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies or plans for its payables with

respect to the credit timeframe.

The bills payables aged within 365 days.

b)  Receipt in advance represented advance payments from customers pursuant

to the respective sales and purchase contracts.

KREERNEIEEA0RENK - RNEE
HEMFRENEESRERSBAREEBCR

katEl

FERE & 2 BRilR A365K A ©

b) FEWFUREREAEBEESHKEEF AN

R °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 A318 (L FE

23.BANK BORROWINGS 23.8R1TER
2015 2014
—E-EF —F—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Secured: B
Trust receipts loans (Note a) SR E R (P 5Ea) 15,693 19,839
Other bank loans (Note b) HbsR1TE R (FizED) 267,403 138,537
283,096 158,376
Unsecured: AR
Other bank loans (Note ¢) H i R1TE R (MEc) 65,650 190,145
348,746 348,521
Bank borrowings repayable (base on scheduled FERTERTTE SR (ARIR S A
repayment dates set out in loan agreements): EXiBENEEERB )
On demand or within one year &xﬂ?ﬁw FR 334,632 332,907
More than one year but not exceeding A FENBE2FA
two years 7,946 7,460
More than two years but not exceeding FBIA2 B NS F A
five years 4,609 8,154
More than five years A A5 1,559 =
348,746 348,521
Less: Carrying amount of bank borrowings thatare 3 : JER RS BIRFE 1 EAE
not repayable within one year from the BEBSIZEREEIR
end of the reporting period but contain a HERITEFRAREE
repayment on demand clause (shown under (RnBAEETER)
current liabilities) (11,087) (15,614)
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under & : IRENB(EIE FERFE
current liabilities MR ERFIE (334,632) (332,907)
Amount shown under current liabilities RimE) & &R TR RIE (345,719) (348,521)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIERB B EIR N KIA (3,027) -
Notes: FE -
a)  As at 31 December 2015, trust receipts loan with carrying amounts of a) 20158 12A31H » BREIE 415,693,000 7T
approximately HK$15,693,000 (2014: approximately HK$19,839,000) carried (20144F : %719,839,000% 7T ) K {= 5L IR B 3K
fixed rate of interest of 2.98% (2014: 3.25%) per annum and was due within 3 R [E EF B E298%(20144F : 325%):T8 » I

months. H3ME A REE] -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

23.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

b)

As at 31 December 2015, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$98,883,000 (2014: approximately HK$64,649,000) bore
interest at floating rate and due from one to ten years. The floating rate
borrowing carried interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate ("HIBOR") plus 2.25% to the rate stipulated by the rate offered by
the Peoples Bank of China (“PBOC rate”) plus 0% - 0.0485% per annum
(2014: 115% — 130% of the PBOC rate per annum) during the year ended 31
December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, other bank loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$64,456,000 (2014: Nil) bore interest at fixed rate and due
within 1 year. The fixed rate borrowings carried interest ranging from 5.2% to
7.0% per annum during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, revolving loans with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$20,100,000 (2014: approximately HK$14,101,000) bore
interest at floating rate and was due within 1 year. The floating rate borrowings
carried interest at the Hong Kong dollars best lending rate (‘HKD BLR") plus
0.5% (2014: HKD BLR plus 0.5% to 1%) per annum during the year ended 31
December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, machinery loans with initial principal amount of
approximately HK$33,700,000 (2014: approximately HK$27,300,000) carried
floating rate ranging from 1-month HIBOR/London Interbank Borrowing
Rate ("LIBOR’) plus 3.25% per annum, repayable ranging from 36 to 60
instalments commenced from the day of draw down. The machinery loans are
fully repayable by May 2017 to May 2019. As at 31 December 2015, principal
amounts of approximately HK$20,681,000 (2014: approximately HK$23,074,000)
remain unsettled. The facilities contained a repayment on demand clause.

As at 31 December 2015, other bank loans with principal amount of
approximately HK$63,283,000 (2014: approximately HK$36,713,000) bore
interest at floating rate and due within 1 year. The floating rate borrowings
carried interest at LIBOR plus 2.38% per annum during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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23.SRITE (&)
BT« ()

b)

2015512 4318 » BRIEI{E £998,883,0007% 7T
(20144 : #764,649,0007 7T ) KU H Ab ER1TE X
REEHEERGE - WR—E+FREH - HE
201512 A31 B IEFE © B EXRETIRTF
BERRITRAEFEMEN2.25%ZEF B ARR
1T R e EZEF R N09% 2 0.0485% (20144 HE
ARBITEFIFR115%2130%)51 8

2015512 4318 » BRIEI{E 964,456,000 7T
(20144 : )M HEMIRITE FIZE T B K5t
B W —FAEE - #ZF2015F12H318 1k
FE - ERERFRENTF52%E7.0%:T 2 °

2015512 4318 + BRIEI{E £920,100,0007% 7T
(20144 : #914,101,000% 7T ) 1B IR B 5KIE)Z
BERGE - WR—FAEIE - HZE2015612
A3ALLFE  ZEERERRETRERE
RFRANEFER05%(20144F : BLTHREEE
RFIEN05%Z=1%) 5T 8. ©

MR2015F12A318 - VIR ASEDNR
33,700,000/ 7T, (2014 4F : #927,300,00078 7T ) A9
HEBEFIRZBEXTE  BENT—EASE
TERITRIZEFREFR MR RITREFBFER
INEEFIZ3.25% - A B H2HR A Bi#E 536 6057
B8 o IR E AR 20174E5 B £2019%5 A Bl
FEEEE - R2015512 8318 » 420,681,000
A IL (20144 © 4923,074,0007 7T ) KA & X8
KREEE © ZREBDSIREREEKRK -

2015512 4318 © N& 584 7%63,283,0007%8
JC(20144F © #936,713,0007 7T ) M EL M ERT1T B
HIRFEBEGTE - WR—FREH - HE
2015612 A31 A IEFE - ZENERIRMEBIRTT
B AR INEFZK238%:1 8 ©
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23.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

23.SRITE (&)

MieE : (&)

o As at 31 December 2015, other bank loans with carrying amounts of o 2015612 A318 + BREEX) 465,650,000
approximately HK$65,650,000 (2014: approximately HK$190,145,000) bore JC(20144F © #9190,145,00078 7T ) By Eth ER1TE
interest at floating rate and due within 1 year. The floating rate borrowings FIRFBERGE - WR—FREE - BHE
carried interest ranging from the PBOC rate plus 0% to 1.7% (2014: 110% — 20151231 IEEFE - FBEXRERNTH
135% of the PBOC rate) per annum during the year ended 31 December 2015. Bl A RRITINEFFIZE0%ZE1.7%(20145F : H

ARRITFIE110%2135%) 518 ©
d)  The Group's bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period were d)  AARRBMEHARNBITEIIATIFIEE

secured or guaranteed by the followings:

(i) Asat 31 December 2015, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$56,474,000 (2014: Nil) were
secured by the assignment of life insurance policies covering Mr. Yiu Chi
To, the Controlling Shareholder and Mr. Chen Chung Po, the Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer.

The above facilities were also secured by properties held by certain
related companies in which either (i) Mr. Yiu Chi To is the common
director; or (i) Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is the common director.

(i) As at 31 December 2015, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$47,745,000 (2014: Nil) were
secured by the shares of a subsidiary.

The above facilities were also guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To.

(i) As at 31 December 2015, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$158,773,000 (2014:
approximately HK$36,713,000) were secured by land and properties of a
subsidiary as set out in notes 15 and 16.

(iv) As at 31 December 2015, secured banking facilities of the Group
with outstanding balances of approximately HK$8,355,000 (2014:
approximately HK$25,353,000) were secured by the trade receivables of
a subsidiary and the land of a related company, in which Mr. Yiu Chi To
and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu are the common directors.

(v)  As at 31 December 2015, a term loan with outstanding balance of
approximately HK$3,394,000 (2014: Nil) was secured by land of a related
company, in which Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is the common director.

WRIBIR -

) M2015F12A318 - REBEEKFRIT
BLE M R (BB B R 4056,474,00078 7T (2014
F ¢ ) DA AR IR AR IS R Ak AR B ot A R
TESFRTBAHMREL EENASR
B EE (R o

FRRETRHOBREREERLRE
F OB BR L RRRESNET
R R RIS A YR B o

(i) R2015F12A8318 @ AEBEEMART
BE 1 AR (B B 4584 4947,745,00078 72 (2014
) A— M B A BB B DRI -

A ER0E IR R kTS B S AR FEHEAR o

(i) BEAMIFEIS R16FTH © R 2015F 12 A
318 AEEEERRTRE HARE
B 4582 49158,773,000 7 7T (20145 = 49
36,713,00078 7T ) LA —REFT BB A R Ay L4 K
PR o

(v P2015F12A318 « REBEEKFRT
AhE 18 R (8 18 45 82 498,355,000/ 7T (2014
£+ #925,353,0004 70 ) LA—FE B A RIHY
FEURBR kK — R A E A Bl (AR k5B %
ERETMEZ L ARERES) T HER
jﬂi °

(v) F2015F 128318 + EHAEREKEE
#EERAI3,394,00078 7 (20144F ¢ &) LA—FH]
HERR(HPREmL T ARERESE)
BB AEHER
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23.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

The Group's bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period were

secured or guaranteed by the followings: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

As at 31 December 2015, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$8,355,000 (2014: Nil) were
secured by the Group's bills receivables as set out in note 18.

As at 31 December 2015, a bank loan of the Group with outstanding
balance of approximately HK$38,196,000 (2014: Nil) was guaranteed by
Mr. Yiu Chi To.

As at 31 December 2014, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$39,297,000 were secured by
the Group's trade receivables as set out in note 18.

As at 31 December 2014, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$37,174,000 were secured by
a property held by certain related companies in which Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu is

the common director.

As at 31 December 2014, secured banking facilities of the Group with
outstanding balances of approximately HK$19,839,000 were secured by
the Group's pledged bank deposits as set out in note 20.

As the end of the reporting period, the Group has the undrawn trade financing

and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$701,912,000 (2014: approximately
HK$414,887,000).

23.8R1T
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B (%)

MieE : (&)

(@

ARABTREREMRORITEFATIIEIREK
HER - (&)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

K20155F12A318 - REBEEKFRIT
BhE 1 R (8 18 45 82 498,355,000/ 7T (2014
F ) URMIEE 188 M M A SR B FE IR
BAEHEAR -

R2015812A318 » REBRITERE
R AEIE 4 #24938,196,0007 7T (20144 -
) Rk S B e A (EER -

M2014F 12318 » AEE B EMIRTT
BE 8 R 838 A5 82 4939,297,00078 T AR
P 5 1 836k 51) Y ZN 52 [ PR LS AR SR AEHEC 4R ©

K20145F12A318 - REBEEKFRT
BhE 8 R (B8 A5 BR HU37,174,00078 T A
TREQAR(HPkEHmL T AERE
F)RANYEEER

M2014F12A318 « AEE B EMIRTT
BRE 8 A (858 A5 4 4919,839,00078 TT IA AR
S E 2085 0 E E R RITIF RAEE
#}3 °

RFEBR - NEBARERE SHRE KR
TEFREE 49701,912,00058 TT (20144 : 4
414,887,000/ 7T ) ©
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24.0BLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24.BEHREFEE

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and AEENBRALEREHERES T
machinery under finance leases. The average lease term of these MR ES - REEEZE2015F12H318
leases is three years (2014: three years) throughout the years ended 31 IEFE - ZEHENTHHEIA3IF (2014
December 2015. & 38) o

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments R2015F 124310 - EHEEBE FTHHE
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: SEAENKAERERELNT -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
REEEMNRK REHEENREE

2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-HF s —2—TF [ekats

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THT FERT THT

Amounts payable under finance RIEREREENSH

leases: RIE

Within one year —FR 4,573 2,531 4,190 2,252

More than one year but not R —F - BTHER
exceeding two years ks 3,042 2,531 2,941 2,252

More than two years, but not HBBME - BT ERRE
exceeding five years Fak:o 1,087 998 1,064 1,129
8,702 6,060 8,195 5,633
Less: Future finance charges o BEREIEER (507) 427) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations HERERE 8,195 5,633 8,195 5,633

Less: Amounts due within oneyear ¥l : 3l & B & &
shown under current liabilities —FREIEIFIE (4,190) (2,252)

Amounts due after one year —F &3 EIH I8 4,005 3,381
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24.0BLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(continued)

All obligations under finance leases of the Group bore fixed interest
rates. The underlying interest rates of these obligations under finance
leases range from 1.75% to 2.6% (2014: 2.6%) per annum during the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Group's obligations under finance
leases were secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets.
These leases had purchase options.

As at 31 December 2015 certain of the Group’s obligations under
finance leases were guaranteed by certain related companies, in
which Mr. Yiu Chi To, the Controlling Shareholder and the directors of
the Company have beneficial interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's obligations
under finance leases were guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To and a related
company. On 17 December 2014, the guarantee provided by Mr. Yiu
Chi To was released.

25.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereof during the current and prior years:

24.BEHESE(E)

AEBOMAMEREEREZE T X
B BE015F 12838 ILEE © 25/
BEHEGEMNBBATEEXR175%E26%
(20144 : 26%) - AREBEHFEHERR
NHEBEAHEEEENRDEERR - %F
HERHEERE -

R2015F 128318 ' AEBEETHEHEE
HINEERSE TEEQARER  Hazx
BRI EB S EERRN AR EEHEER

e

M o

HE2014F12A3BIEFE » AEBEHR
EREEERKEELENR —EBEEQR
IR o R2014512 8178 » ;kEE 4

IR TR IRIERRRS

25 EEFIE
AN T AR PRI RM £ BRI IE
BERLBHMT :

Difference
between

depreciation

allowance Impairment
and related and
depreciation allowances
TERER
BB B
=5 WEREE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TFET
At 1 January 2014 201441 B18 22 3,952 3,974
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) A8z &R &HA(FI5E10) (14) 2,279) (2,293)
Exchange realignment B 5, - (332) (332)
At 31 December 2014 2014128318 8 1,341 1,349
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) ~ FA1EzxZ< Ik (FiEE10) 133 5019 5,152
Exchange realignment [E 5 = (285) (285)
At 31 December 2015 #2015512 8310 141 6,075 6,216
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 A318 (L FE

25.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25 EFERIE (4] )

As at 31 December 2015, certain subsidiaries of the Group had
aggregate unused tax losses of approximately HK$54,564,000 (2014:
approximately HK$35,743,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these unused
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future income stream of these
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2015, tax losses of approximately
HK$37,552,000 (2014: approximately HK$26,384,000) will be expired
within 5 years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Certain tax losses of approximately HK$456,000 (2014: Nil) attributable
to certain subsidiaries were disallowed by the Inland Revenue

Department in the current year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has temporary differences of
approximately HK$42,359,000 (2014: Nil). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such temporary differences as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”). As at 31 December 2015,
deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to
the "Post-2008 Earnings” amounting to approximately HK$312,000,000
(2014: approximately HK$328,000,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

MR2015F 124318 - AEEETHBE QA
AR SR R A E R R B R S S 1B A EE
#) 554,564,00078 7T (2014 4F © #935,743,000
PBIT) o AR EELATERIZ S HIE A RIAIAR R
WARE - M ERZEARB AR IEEE
BRELERHIBEE - K2015F128318 -
i 75 85 18 #937,552,000 7% 7T (2014 4F : 49
26,384,000/ 7T ) #EFAS F N EIHE o E At E51E
A AEPR A AL RS o

RNEE  pBETHEBAREES THIEE
1B #49456,00078 7T (20144 © 48 ) 3 B EF 15
B -

M2015F12H318 - AEEERMEEELD
£542,359,0008 7T (20144 : #) o | FIA
JRE FR A5 ) P S BT PR B A AT HOR BT AR =
2 W ER R SR M E AR
HEE o

RIEF B ZEFEHE - B20085F1 H1H
i R ME A A B E AT HREAE ([ 2008
FHR2BA]) 2KREBHITFEHH - HR
NEFAEH BRI EHEER 2BH
MEBREREZERATER RIS
B ol AR 20155 12 A318 - WERER
BB RE ABL[ 2008 F 18 2 B F| | B E
BF 5 2= B 49312,000,0007 7T (20144 = 49
328,000,000/ 7T, ) Z IEFEFA B (E H s o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %2015 12 H318 (L FE

26.GOVERNMENT GRANTS 26. U BN

HK$'000

FAT
At 1 January 2014 7201441 A1H 33,839
Government grants raised during the year TN FTIE I T #H Bh 852
Government grants utilised during the year F N B B BT B (707)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (113)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 2014512 A318 %2015F1 H1H 33,871
Government grants raised during the year FRFIE TR 1,178
Government grants utilised during the year F N B BT B (177)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B (2018)
At 31 December 2015 720156124311 32,854

As at 31 December 2015, the government grants of approximately
HK$32,854,000 (2014: approximately HKS$33,871,000) which were
designated for certain research projects, export incentives, technical
innovation, localisation incentives and fiscal refund were granted by
the PRC municipal government. The amount is stated as non-current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that certain conditions
in respect of these grants will not be fulfilled within the next twelve
months from the end of the each reporting period.

R2015F 128318  I8EEARE THEE
B - R - FRITeIET - 7 SRE) &
B T KT 4% T B B IBUR SR BT 4 B 49
732,854,000 7T (20144F + #933,871,00075
7T) c HRA AR EEZRR/EIENE]mE
HIRRBARR @A AEKRZE[NE
Fi&H - BB ERGRE BT ER
RAIERBAE -
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27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. ]
The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 AEBER2015F12A31 BHRA AR QA
represented the share capital of the Company. AP o
Number of shares Share capital
RO #E BRAS

2015 2014
=S —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Authorised
At 1 January (2015:HK$0.01 each;
2014: USS1 each)

Increase on 21 October 2014 (Note ¢)

Diminution on 21 October 2014 (Note ¢)

At 31 December (2015:HKS0.01 each;
2014: HKS0.01 each)

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January (2015:HK$0.01 each;
2014: USS1 each)

Group reorganisation (Note c)
Issue of shares (Note d)
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note e)

At 31 December (2015:HKS0.01 each;
2014: HK$0.01 each)

ETE
M1 A1H (2015
FR00VETT
20145 : BRI1ZET)
2014810821 B340
(FftsEc) -
20141221 B
(Fft&Ec) -

1,000,000,000

50,000

1,000,000,000

(50,000)

10,000

390

10,000

(390)

128318 (20155 :
BRI
20144 : &RR001%E7T)  1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

10,000

10,000

BEAIRER

A1ATE (2015 -
FH0017BTT ¢
2014 : BRI1ZETT)

SESA (M)

BITRM (Hikd) -

BTG (FTke) -

200,000,000

136

105,944
50,000,000
149,893,920

2,000

1,499

A12 8318 (20154
FIR001ATT

20145 : ®iR001EL) 200,000,000

200,000,000

2,000

2,000
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@) On 16 August 2013, the Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liabilities under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands with an authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into
50,000 shares of US$1 each. As at the date of incorporation, 1 fully paid share

of US$1 was issued.

(b) On 31 December 2013, the Company allotted and issued 135 shares at
HK$ 1,000,000 each credited as fully paid and in return acquired all the
outstanding ordinary shares of Windrider Technology Company Limited.

() On 21 October 2014, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$390,000 to HK$10,390,000 by the creation of 1,000,000,000
new ordinary shares, of HK$0.01 each, which rank pari passu in all respects.

On the same date, 106,080 nil paid ordinary shares were allotted and issued to
the beneficial owner of the Company, Rexell Technology Company Limited,
at a price of HK$0.01 each. The aggregate subscription price was HKS$1,061
(the “Subscription price’). On the same date, the Company repurchased 136
existing issued ordinary shares of US$1 each at an aggregate repurchase price
of US$136 (equivalent to HK$1,061) (the “Repurchase price”). The shares were
cancelled upon repurchase. The Subscription price was set-off against the
aggregate Repurchase price and the 106,080 nil paid shares were credited as

fully paid.

Following the repurchase, the authorised but unissued share capital of the
Company was diminished by the cancellation of all the 50,000 unissued shares

of USS$1 each in the capital of the Company.

(d) Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company on 11 November 2014,
50,000,000 new ordinary shares with nominal value HK$0.01 each were offered

at share offer price of HK$3.68 each.

(e) A total of 149,893,920 ordinary shares were credited as fully paid on 18
November 2014 by way of capitalisation of the sum of approximately
HK$1,499,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company, and the shares be allotted and issued rank pari passu in all respects

with the existing issued shares.
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27. 24 (4&)
B

(a)

MR2013F8 168  AARIBEHEHS AR
EERSHS MK AEREBRAR - X
TEBR AN A50,0005E 7T+ 93 /£50,00088 B AR E A1
MG o NI BE - BRI —RE
BT RN °

2013512 31 H » N R AL B R 1T 135
P% & A% TH 81,000,000 7% 7T K9 B& 17 36 A BR 51 #E
2 + LAY EE Windrider Technology Company
Limited 2 B 81 TEINE BAR o

20145108218 » AR RAPETERANE B
#%1,000,000,000 A% & A& T {B0.01 7 7T &9 ¥ & 3
R(EEMB T EZHRERER) © H390,0007%
JCIE INZ 10,390,000/ 7T ©

B H 1060808 AR BARIZ BAR0.01 T2
BREZERBETTAADESEA AR
HERAR - RBEEELR1,0618 77 ([ REE
B - AB  RAREE36REREEETT
MIRBEETLAER - BEEEAR136ET(HH
FER,0614870) ([BEE]) - ROMRIEERE
$H o REBEC EARBRIEEE - 1060808
KRB IDE ANBRFIVEBUR ©

RO - AR BPATER B AREITRAEFEHA
A BB AR FR 2 E650,000 A% 5 AR I 18 1 £ TT R R
BT TR

BIEARTNR2014F11 811 B BBHARESR
50,000,0000% B E{E0.0 1B TR FT L B IE S
f&3.68 BRI HEBEE -

FRGAR ARG EERNERBEREL
1,499,000 7L E AL + & $£149,893,9200% & i
B&R 2014511 A18B ABRFIEZZE - i T &
BRETHRODESTHEREGEETRO=E
BREHNL -
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28.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 28.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into
several finance lease arrangements in respect of acquisition of
machines and motor vehicle with a total capital value at the inception
of the lease of approximately HK$5,261,000 (2014: approximately
HK$5,390,000).

29.TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 29.

The following table details the Group's trade and bills receivables which
were transferred to banks by discounting those receivables on a full
recourse basis. As the Group had not transferred the significant risks
and rewards relating to these receivables, it continued to recognise
the full carrying amount of the receivables and had recognised the
cash received on the transfer as a secured borrowing (see Note 23).
These financial assets and financial liabilities were carried at amortised
cost in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

FEFRRERS

HE015F12A31BLEE - KEBRR
THERBREEE 88 N E 495,261,000 7T
(20144F : #95390,000/8 7T ) FOMLES I /R
RN ZTEEHERH -

BERIMEE
TRAVAEEE R ERITHRUERR K
R ZEFRBFRRFETHERENE
ERR ANAKE Y BEEREMRREE
WA B AR & @5 - R EFHE R
ZERBFENZBORE(E @ LR
ZEBEDNRE /D ERER(RHE
23) ZEERMEENERABNAKELS
BRI RIRE AR ©

Carrying amount of transferred assets EREERAE
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HEa EREE

2015 2014
—E-1F —2mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
8,355 44,505
(8,290) (39,297)

65 5,208
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30.0OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

30. KL HERIE

AEREFERERA
RBERR - AEEFAHEEERER
T B AR EASRERSERAT -

2015 2014

—E-RF T —F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTHER FAT

Within one year —FK 3,919 4,238
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FEFRAF(BIEEERT) 1,787 392
Over five years A T 138 =
5,844 4,630

The Group leases certain of its factory premises and offices under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three (2014: one to three) years with fixed
rentals as at 31 December 2015.

31.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered into the

following significant transactions with related parties during the year.

(a) Compensation of key management personnel
Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and employees
of the Group as set out in note 12, who are considered as the
key management personnel of the Group, the Group did not
have any other significant compensations to key management
personnel.

The remuneration of the directors and key management
personnel is determined by the board of directors of the
Company having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

AREBRESEHELHEESE T ITHRY
EWAE - R2015F128318 © EMAEH
KEE AN T1Z23F(2014F : 123F) »
T B ETE o

BMN.BEEATRRE NG

BRNER A M B R B BB S5 5
RSN ARBRNFRIEREALRL
ATEARS °

(@) TEEEAEBNMHE
BRME2AEN TASBEEER
BE(RERESAKEETEEEA
B)FBN  AREYEAEREIE
ABXAHEA B EARE

ESNFTEEEABNFMEAQT
ExegEREMNALTRERTSE
BEE -
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31.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND B1.BAEBEATRERERE)
BALANCES (continued)

(b) Banking facilities and bank loan (b) SRITRLE RIBITER
As at 31 December 2015 certain banking facility and a bank loan R2015F 128318 » BRIERERREE
of the Group were guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To, the Controlling %EFT%E’]$E BETRITHE K
Shareholder, to the following extent: —IEIRITEFAT -
2015 2014
= i L
HK$'000 HK$/000
FTET AT
Mr. Yiu Chi To HEELE 85,941 —
As at 31 December 2015 certain banking facility of the Group 20158128318 * AEERE TR
were secured by a charge over land and properties owned by TRENBBEERRERR LTI R
related companies. Details of the guarantees are set out in note FIE o BRFIFHIIPMIFE23 ©
23.
(c) Other related parties transactions (c) HLBEALRS
2015 2014
—B-RfF —T—mEF
Name of company Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
AEER REME FET AT
Maxtone Electronics Limited (“Maxtone”) Rental expenses
BFERESTARAR(BSE] GikalEba 969 816
The director of the Company has beneficial interest in Maxtone. ARG EEREBRSRANERER °
The above transactions were at terms determined and agreed by PR SGEARARNBRAEBBALEER
the Company and the relevant parties. P R TRHEST ©
(d) Other guarantees (d) HAER
During the years ended 31 December 2014, the Company’s HZE2014F 128318 IEFE - R
obligations under a finance lease as disclosed in note 24 was UBREBRNA NG EREREHRKEE
guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To and a related company. The B4 R —HEEQFMEER - #hE
guarantee provided by Mr. Yiu Chi To has been released on 17 B S AR EIRE R 201412717

December 2014. HAZRR ©
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32.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 32. B REHIGTE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant costs to the scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees. The contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 since June 2014 (January 2014 to June 2014: monthly cap of
HK$1,250).

The employees of the Company's subsidiary established in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of
approximately HK$16,544,000 (2014: approximately HK$13,839,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

REBABMBRBEBNAEERESLZMA
BEFrEl - RBERFTENEERIIEAZ
FlMEed BRAEENEES S °
ANEE IR AR A R 5% A AT BIE L 43K
W E B EL ER¥E 3k - B20145F6 AFE -
EEREEZBENHRERAES A1,500/8
TL(2014%F1 AZE2014F6 8 : EA LR A
1,250987T) ©

ARREFRBEKZAHER R ESR SH
o B R T 58 ) B 3B IR R AR AR B
DS U k= PNCIEY S A D A
ETADHLREREREEIHR - AAK
AEIMRNRENEFES - AREFERAK
B BIZA A MM —BERRIRET EIEL
MK -

HE2015F 128318 IEFE » NEBE
3R PR 48 FI) 51 2 5R 49 16,544,0008 7T °
(20144 : #713,839,000/87T) °
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33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

33. 42 B A B FEAR R 3R

2015 2014
—g-ns [ S
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Non-Current Assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EfBRATRE 135,000 135,000
Current Assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - Re REM
receivables FEWIFRIE 2 920
Amounts due from subsidiaries P B A B IE @) 169,327 169,331
169,329 170,251
Current Liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HhERRIERTEIRE A 15 15
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS — IR B A B IE 4,804 -
4,819 15
Net Current Assets BREBEE 164,510 170,236
Net Assets FEE 299,510 305,236
Capital and Reserves EARREE
Share capital e 2,000 2,000
Reserves e (b) 297,510 303,236
Total Equity wrER 299,510 305,236
Notes: FE -

(@) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, carry prevailing market

interest rate and are repayable on demand.

(@) PR RN A RRIEDEER BRI
B EGBARARERERE -
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33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

33. 8D AWV IR R (AR

Notes: (continued)

BiRE ¢ ()

Movements in reserves

b) FiEES

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
BRAD 5B B0 ] ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FETT FHET
As at 1 January 2014 2014517418 134,999 73) 134,926
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBERZEMAX
expense for the year “axE = (12) (12)
Issue of new shares (Note 27d) BT (M E27d) 183,500 - 183,500
Share issue expenses RRIDEE1TRIZ (13,679) = (13,679)
Capitalisation issue of shares R HIE AR L 31T
(Note 27¢) (Bi=E27€) (1,499) - (1,499)
As at 31 December 2014 2014128318
and 1 January 2015 201581 A1H 303,321 (85) 303,236
Loss and total comprehensive FEEEREZER
expense for the year “aza = (1,726) (1,726)
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) BBk RIRSAR S (HH7E13) (4,000) - (4,000)
As at 31 December 2015 720154128318 299,321 (1,811) 297,510
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34.SUBSIDIARIES 34.M{ B A Tl

RRARIMB AR ZFBEHINMT

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTRAR KRR
WEARERE R EEBEY A/ EREE RiE/ REEBDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
EE &
Windrider Technology Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
Limited BRaES B US$100 RERR
EidliooET
Techwide Management Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERLEE B8 US$100 BRARK
Eiaki00%ET
Wai Chi Electronic Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Management Company Limited &5 B HK$100,000 REER
BEEFHRERBRAA L@k 1000008 7T
Ecosquare Energy Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRaEE B US$100 RERR
Eialkio0ET
Wai Chi Energy Services Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited BA B HK$100,000 REER
EiiR100000E 7T
Alled Solution Company Limited The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
RERKEE AR US$100 RERR
LRAR100ET
Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
BEEERRAT BB BB HK$135,100,000 RARR
('Wai Chi Group’) LEK
(EF5E)) 135,100000787C
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34.SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34.ffiB AT (&)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTRAR KN AR
HEAREH R R EENE B/ &L BE/ REBESL TEEY
Direct Indirect
E# EE:3
Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Trading of LED
BEXEERAT] B0 B0 HKS62,380,000 backlight and
gl lighting
62,380,000 7T products
BBLEDA L LRHA
Em
Wai Chi Opto Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
(Shenzhen) Limited* (Note a) o w RMBY7,128,000 sale of LED backlight
BEXBRYDERAR (Ma) &R and lighting
AR %07,1280007T products
BUERSAELEDE
RERAER
Sanxia Wai Chi Opto Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of LED lights
(Yichang) Limited* (Note b) s A RMB30,000,000 installation services
SHESHE(EE)BRAA AMER FRAELEDRRE
(FifEb) AR 300000007 RERB
Shenzhen Wai Chi Lighting The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* (Note b) A A RMBS5,000,000 sale of LED lighting
AMESREERAF AR products
(‘Shenzhen Lightings’) AE#5,0000007C BERHELDRY
(TRNERE 1) (MizEb) Em
Beijing Senhuan Energy The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Energy management
Management Company o A RMBS5,300,000 business
Limited* (Note b) AR B RER
E BRI ARA AR H5,8000007C
('Beijing Senhuan’)

(TEm#E ) (Hfitb)

*  For translation purpose only

* EERERR
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34.SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34./ftE AR (&)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL/ ERTRAR KRB
HWEARER R EEHY &/ EMEL R/ REEE DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# ol
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limited* (Note b) H H RMB144,113,349 of LED backlight
BMEESFERAR (Fb) AMER and
AR 1441133497 lighting products
BUERHELEDE X
RERAER
Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware The PRC The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture of moulds
(Huizhou) Company Limited o o 1US$3,720,000 Bl iag
BEREIZBEMBRAR &R
(Note b) (Fitb) 372000057
ENEERERSERAR The PRC The PRC Registered capital = 100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) (Fiiz¥b) H H RMBA4,838,290 of LED backlight
FMER products
AR#48382007C BUERHELEDE X
Em
TR ESREERAR The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Fund centre
(Note b) (FitiEb) i i RMBS,000,000 e ST
HAMER
ARH5,0000007C

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.
Notes: BisE
(@)  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. (a)

(b) The entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

*  For translation purpose only

* EERERR

BEMNBRRNERBETEMNERES
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35.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 March 2016, the Company has made arrangement to procure or
refer independent private investors to subscribe for corporate bonds
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$150,000,000 bearing
interest rate of 8% per annum with maturity ranging from 3 years to 7.5
years from the date of issue. Up to 24 March 2016, HK$2,000,000 of the

corporate bonds were issued.

36.COMPARATIVES

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and other receivables
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss were
previously included in administrative expenses. To conform to current
year's presentation, the impairment loss recognised for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reclassified to other operating expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to facilitate a better
presentation.

Trade receivables and bills receivables were previously combined as
a single line item in the consolidated statement of financial position.
To conform to current year's presentation, trade receivables and
bills receivable as at 31 December 2014 have been separated in the
consolidated statement of financial position to facilitate a better

presentation.

Trade payables and bills payables were previously combined as a
single line item in the consolidated statement of financial position.
To conform to current year's presentation, trade payables and
bills payables as at 31 December 2014 have been separated in the
consolidated statement of financial position to facilitate a better

presentation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

35. MEHARREN

MR20165F3 A 148 + KRARIEIEH L AR
FekSIBBUFLAREERB RS RER
%150,000,000/8 ;LR B R EFT B E HI A
BETRAEER/SETEN ARG
¥ o BE2016F3 248 - BT ARG
% 5842,000,000/8 7T °

36.LLE BT

REFEBEERTZESE s AR R & E At
FEMRIBHER KR E BB E R TRTRT AST
BHAY - BEAFEMNZIAR - R
HZ=2014F 12831 B ILFEEERARE
BEREEFNSHEERSEaRMNEMLE
X - LEBEENZAR -

FEUBR R K R R IR B A SR AT TE AR & B 7%
MAKRENRE—IER - RERFENSE
B —2 0 201412 831 B HEUER
FREREEEDFRALE BB R
= NEREENZIAR -

FEBRR R BN RIEE R IE AR S 75
KRREHARE—IEE - REAAFEMNS
AR5 R2014F12 831 B ERER
FERENEEESFARALEMBRR
= NEBEENZFAR -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

/E LS

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited E&IZRFRLF

Percentage
interest of
Property the Group Floor Area Usage as at 31 December 2015
REME
LUE S EEZERL HE R2015F12831BRKZAE
(sq.ft)
(FAR)
An Industrial complex located in Sanxu Village and 100% 1,807,709 Occupied by the Group for
Meihua Village, Luoyang Town, Boluo County, industrial use
Huizhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC AEBGBELIZERS
— AR B R & BN T B 7R &
EGHE=IR RGN 2 TXE
A Land Parcel located in Yanjiahe Village, Xiaoita, 100% 595,595 A bare site and pending future

Yiling District, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC
— IR A BIE A B BT RERE
ANESESSE STV N b

development
ZEYE  FHRER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M=

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Operating expenses

(Loss) /profit before tax
Income tax expenses

(Loss) /profit for the year

(Loss) /earnings per share
Basic and diluted (cents)

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net Assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

EXE
HEMA

E7

BRBLAT (B51R) /A8
ISR

FEER) /B

BR(BR) B
EAREEML)

BENRE
FERBEE
MYEE
RERE

REERRBAE
FERBAR

BEFE
BERiRE
[rEN

e

BRER

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 3R

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
=t Dbk —T—NF —E—=F —ET-—-—F —T——F
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FET FAET FEL FAET
(restated)
(&=5)

1,100,491 1,165,579 894,033 753,655 746,978
(854,979) (889,736) (668,706) (575,749) (581,304)
245,512 275843 225327 177,906 165,674
(283,173) (194,255) (155,768) (129.819) (118.294)

(37,661) 81,588 69,559 48,087 47380
(1,106) (20,395) (14,369) (7122) 4,762)
(38,767) 61,193 55,190 40,965 42618
(0.19) 039 0.66 N/A N/A
330,995 356,524 340,484 296,081 266,774

1,317,509 1,252,401 842,349 771259 656,105

(1,032,180) (919,442) (727,832) (777,425) (727,630)
616,324 689,483 455,001 289,915 195,249

(39,886) (37,252) (34,548) (9,407) 617)
576,438 652,231 420453 280,508 194,632

2,000 2,000 101 100 100
574,438 650,231 420352 280,408 194,532
576,438 652,231 420453 280,508 194,632







	封面
	內封
	目錄
	公司簡介
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層之論述及分析
	董事、高級管理人員及僱員
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	物業附表
	財務概要
	封底

